
 
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

 AGENDA  
MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024 AT 5:00 P.M. 

 
 

DR. S. F. MONESTIME MUNICIPAL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
160 WATER STREET, MATTAWA ON 

 
 

Zoom Meeting Access: 1-647-374-4685 
Meeting ID Code:  864 9897 7862 

Passcode: 651285 
 
 

1. Meeting Called to Order  
 
2. Announce Electronic Participants 
 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
 
3.1 To Adopt the agenda as presented or amended 
 

- That the agenda dated November 25, 2024 be adopted 
 
4. Disclosures of a Conflict of Interest 
 
5. Presentations and Delegations 
 
5.1 Baker Tilly SNT – Town of Mattawa 2022 Audited Financial Statement  
 
6. Adoption of Minutes 
 
6.1 Regular Meeting of November 11, 2024 
 
6.2 Special Meeting of November 14, 2024 
 
6.3 To adopt the minutes as presented or amended 
 

- That Council adopt the November 11 & 14, 2024 minutes  
 
7. Notice of Motions 
 
7.1 Request to Redistribution of the Provincial Land Transfer Tax & GST to Municipalities  
 
8. Correspondence 
 
8.1 North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit – Recommendation for Provincial Oral Health 

Strategy 
 
8.2 AMO – Encampments & Opioid Crisis  
 
8.3 Municipality of North Perth – Establishment of an Ontario Rural Road Safety Program 
 
8.4 Municipality of East Ferris – Support for North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit 

Perspectives from Northern Ontario o Public Health Funding Review       



 
 
8.5 North Bay Mattawa Conservation Authority – Notice of Meeting to Approve the 2025 

Draft Budget  
 
8.6 City of Port Colborne – Support for the Establishment of an Ontario Rural Road Safety 

Program 
 
8.7 Councillor Loren Mick – Dreamcoat Theatre Presents The Drowsy Chaperone 
 
9. Standing Committee Recommendations/Reports – Motions  
 
10. Information Reports – Motions 
 

10.1 Physician Recruitment Report – Report # 24-63R 
10.2 Updates from Town Hall – Report # 24-64R 
10.3 Fencing At 640 Brydges Street – Report # 24-65R 
10.4 Replacement of 2012 Ford F-150 – Report # 24-66R 

 
11. By-Laws 
 
11.1 By-Law # 24-20 – Hire Chief Administrative Officer & Appointment of Treasurer  

BEING a By-law to appoint Paul Laperriere as Chief Administrative Officer and 
Treasurer for the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa. 

 
12. Old Business 

 
12.1 Council – Food Cycler Municipal Solutions 
 
12.2 Beautification Committee Terms of Reference & Committee Structure 
 
12.3 Fence Request at 640 Brydges Street 
 
12.4 Mattawa & Area Police Services Board Levy 
 
13. New Business 
 
14. Questions from Public Pertaining to Agenda 
 
15. In Camera (Closed) Session 
 
16. Return to Regular Session 

 
17. Motions Resulting from Closed Session 

 
18. Adjournment 
 
18.1 Adjournment of the meeting 
 

- That the November 25, 2024 meeting adjourn at _________ p.m. 



 

 

DATE: MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024       3.1 
 

THE CORPORATION TOWN OF MATTAWA 
 
 
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the meeting agenda dated Monday November 25, 2024 be 

adopted. 

 
 



6.1 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MATTAWA 

 
The minutes of the Regular Meeting held Monday November 11, 2024, at 5:00 p.m. in the Dr. S.F. 
Monestime Council Chambers. 
 
 Council Present: Mayor Raymond A. Bélanger 
    Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner 
    Councillor Fern Levesque 
    Councillor Loren Mick 
    Councillor Laura Ross 
    Councillor Garry Thibert 
    Councillor Spencer Bigelow 
 
 Staff Present:  Amy Leclerc, Municipal Clerk/Revenue Services Clerk 
    Paul Laperriere, Interim CAO/Treasurer 
    Dexture Sarrazin, Director of Community Services 
    Melody Byers, Executive Assistant 
 
 
 
 
1. Meeting Called to Order  
 
Meeting Called to Order by Mayor Bélanger at 5:01 p.m. 
 
2. Announce Electronic Participants 
 
Clerk announced that there was no online participation. 
 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
 
3.1 To Adopt the agenda as presented or amended 

 
Resolution Number 24-229 
Moved by Councillor Laura Ross  
Seconded by Councillor Fern Levesque 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the meeting agenda dated Monday November 11, 2024 be 
adopted. 

CARRIED – unanimous   
 
4. Disclosures of a Conflict of Interest 
 
Mayor Bélanger declared a conflict on Item #15.1 on the agenda, more direct the declaration 
was on the In Camera (Closed) Session agenda Item # 1.1. 
 
5. Presentations and Delegations 
 
6. Adoption of Minutes 
 
6.1 Regular Meeting of October 28, 2024 
 
6.2 To adopt the minutes as presented or amended 

 
 

*When a recorded vote is requested and the minutes indicate the recorded vote was "Unanimous" 
it means all Councillors present and noted above voted in favour unless otherwise indicated. 

 



 

 
Resolution Number 24-230 
Moved by Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner 
Seconded by Councillor Garry Thibert 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council adopt the minutes of the Regular meeting of Monday 
October 28, 2024. 

CARRIED – unanimous   
 
7. Notice of Motions 
 
Councillor Mick arrived at 5:10 p.m. 
 
7.1 Forest Industry Support 
 

Resolution Number 24-231 
Moved by Councillor Fern Levesque 
Seconded by Councillor Spencer Bigelow 

 
WHEREAS, the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa recognizes how vital the Forestry 
Industry is to the Economy in Ontario; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the success of the forest sector is critical to the economic and social 
prosperity of Ontario communities, employing 137,000 people; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the forest industry has invested over $3.8 billion in Ontario since 2018; 
 
AND WHEREAS, Ontario has an opportunity to market global investment in the 
bioeconomy, similar to critical minerals and electric vehicle manufacturing, and become a 
leading international jurisdiction; 
 
AND WHEREAS, over the last 20 years, the North American pulp and paper sector has 
seen a significant rationalization in production capacity, with investment dollars going to 
competing international jurisdictions; 
 
AND WHEREAS, in the last year, Ontario has seen three pulp, paper, and containerboard 
mills idle or close, negatively impacting communities and the solid wood mills that depend 
on these facilities as markets for mill by-products and pulpwood; 
 
AND WHEREAS, U.S. tariffs on softwood lumber are expected to double in 2025, to 
approximately 30%; 
 
AND WHEREAS, Ontario should work with federal colleagues to pursue a softwood lumber 
settlement that works in the best interests of Ontario lumber producers and advocate for a 
financial backstop; 
 
AND WHEREAS, Ontario has an opportunity to procure greater amounts of energy (i.e., 
electricity, heat, fuels, biochar, etc.) from forestry by-products and forests to assist in heavy 
industry decarbonization and Ontario’s forecasted electricity demands; 
 
AND WHEREAS, Ontario’s successful and oversubscribed Forest Biomass Program should 
continue post-2027; 
 
AND WHEREAS, Ontario will actively seek investment to restart idled softwood kraft lines in 
Ontario and Quebec to provide immediate relief for some sawmill producers; 
 



 

AND WHEREAS, Ontario’s $10 million Sawmill Chip Program, ending March 25, 2025, will 
likely need to continue and expand in the absence of an immediate restart of a currently 
idled pulp mill to avoid curtailments at solid wood facilities; 
 
AND WHEREAS, 5-year bilateral power purchase agreements (PPAs) with forest biomass-
fired electrical generation facilities are insufficient and should be expanded both in terms of 
length and volume to provide communities, industry, and workers with a certain future; 
 
AND WHEREAS, the public Forest Access Roads Funding Program, which provides for the 
public use of Ontario’s forests, should be increased to $75 million/year to reflect inflationary 
pressures and support legacy infrastructure upgrades (i.e., roads, bridges, and water 
crossings). 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa support the 
implementation of the Ontario Forest Industries Association’s 2025 Ontario Budget 
Recommendations in support of attracting investment and maintaining forest operations and 
employment in Ontario. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT at a copy of this Resolution be sent to the Minister of Economic 
Development, Job Creation and Trade, Minister of Natural Resources, Minister of Forestry 
and Forest Products, Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks, Minister of Mines, 
Minister of Energy and Electrification, Minister of Finance, MP Anthony Rota, MPP Vic 
Fedeli, the Federation of Northern Ontario Municipalities, AMO, ROMA, and OFIA. 

CARRIED – unanimous   
 
7.2 Change in Start Time for November 25, 2024 Meeting 
 

Resolution Number 24-232 
Moved by Councillor Loren Mick 
Seconded by Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council approves a change in the start time of the Regular 
Meeting of Monday November 25, 2024 to begin at 5:00 p.m. 

CARRIED – unanimous   
 
8. Correspondence 
 
 
8.1 North Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit – Perspectives from Northern Ontario for Public 

Health Funding Review   
 
Council spoke on correspondence item # 8.1. 
 
8.2 Town of Aurora – Fair Distribution of GST from New Home Sales  
 
Council spoke on correspondence item # 8.2 and directed staff to bring back a support resolution 
at the next regular meeting. 
 
8.3 Jp2g Consultants Inc. – Mattawa Marina Project 
 
Council spoke on correspondence item # 8.3. 
 
8.4 Ministry of Energy & Electrification – Ontario’s Affordable Energy Future       
 
8.5 ROMA – Explore ROI’s Rural Housing Information System & Rural Community Well-Being 

Dashboard 



 
 
8.6 Ontario Clean Water Agency – Mattawa Water & Wastewater Systems Quarterly 

Operations Report   
 
Council spoke on correspondence item # 8.6. 
 
9. Standing Committee Recommendations/Reports – Motions  
 
10. Staff Reports – Motions 
 
11. By-Laws 
 
12. Old Business 

 
12.1 Council – Food Cycler Municipal Solutions 
 
There was no update from staff on the food cycler municipal solutions.  Deputy Mayor Gardiner 
questioned if Council had an appetite for this or remove it. Council spoke to this and would like to 
see it move forward.  This will be brought back again under old business. 
 
12.2 Beautification Committee Terms of Reference & Committee Structure 
 
There was no update from staff.  This will be brought back again under old business. 
 
12.3 Fence Request at 640 Brydges Street 
 
Council requested a report from the By-law Enforcement Officer/Chief Building Official on this 
matter before making their final decision. 
 
13. New Business 
 
14. Questions from Public Pertaining to Agenda 

 
15. In Camera (Closed) Session 
 
15.1 CAO/Treasurer Position Update 

In accordance with the Municipal Act, 2001 Section 239 (2)(b) 
b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees 

 
Mayor Bélanger declared a conflict of interest on Item # 1.1 on the closed session agenda and 
removed himself from Council Chambers. 
 
Mayor Belanger returned to Council Chambers. 
 

Resolution Number 24-233 
Moved by Councillor Spencer Bigelow  
Seconded by Councillor Fern Levesque 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Council proceed in Camera at 5:42 pm in order to address a 
matter pertaining to: b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal 
or local board employees. 

CARRIED – unanimous  
 
16. Return to Regular Session 
 

 
 



 

Resolution Number 24-234 
Moved by Councillor Loren Mick 
Seconded by Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the regular meeting reconvene at 6:18 p.m. 

CARRIED – unanimous     
 
Mayor Belanger advised that the closed session was to discuss CAO/Treasurer position. 
 
17. Motions Resulting from Closed Session 

 
18. Adjournment 
 
18.1 Adjournment of the meeting 
 

Resolution Number 24-235 
Moved by Councillor Fern Levesque  
Seconded by Councillor Garry Thibert 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the November 11, 2024 meeting adjourn at 6:19 p.m. 

CARRIED – unanimous  
 
 

 
              
     Mayor        Clerk 



6.2 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MATTAWA 

 
The minutes of the Special Meeting held Thursday November 14, 2024, at 3:00 p.m. in the Dr. S.F. 
Monestime Council Chambers. 
 
 Council Present: Mayor Raymond A. Bélanger 
    Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner 
    Councillor Fern Levesque 
    Councillor Loren Mick 
    Councillor Laura Ross 
    Councillor Garry Thibert 
    Councillor Spencer Bigelow 
 
 Staff Present:  Amy Leclerc, Municipal Clerk/Revenue Services Clerk 
 
 
 
 
1. Meeting Called to Order  
 
Meeting Called to Order by Mayor Bélanger at 3:02 p.m. 
 
2. Announce Electronic Participants 
 
Clerk advised the meeting was not being recorded. 
 
3. Adoption of Agenda 
 
3.1 To Adopt the agenda as presented or amended 

 
Resolution Number 24-236 
Moved by Councillor Spencer Bigelow 
Seconded by Councillor Fern Levesque 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the meeting agenda dated Thursday November 14, 2024 be 
adopted. 

CARRIED – unanimous   
 
4. Disclosures of a Conflict of Interest 
 
5. Presentations and Delegations 
 
6. Notice of Motions 
 
7. Standing Committee Recommendations/Reports – Motions  
 
8. Information Reports – Motions 
 
9. In Camera (Closed) Session 
 
9.1 CAO/Treasurer Interviews 

In accordance with the Municipal Act, 2001 Section 239 (2)(b) 
b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal or local board employees 

 
 
 

*When a recorded vote is requested and the minutes indicate the recorded vote was "Unanimous" 
it means all Councillors present and noted above voted in favour unless otherwise indicated. 

 



6.2 
Resolution Number 24-237 
Moved by Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner  
Seconded by Councillor Loren Mick 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT this Council proceed in Camera at 3:04 pm in order to address a 
matter pertaining to: b) personal matters about an identifiable individual, including municipal 
or local board employees. 

CARRIED – unanimous  
 
10. Return to Regular Session 

 
Resolution Number 24-238 
Moved by Councillor Fern Levesque 
Seconded by Deputy Mayor Mathew Gardiner 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the regular meeting reconvene at 5:44 p.m. 

CARRIED – unanimous     
 
Mayor Belanger advised that the closed session was to conduct interviews for the 
CAO/Treasurer position. 

 
11. Motions Resulting from Closed Session 

 
12. Adjournment 
 
12.1 Adjournment of the meeting 
 

Resolution Number 24-239 
Moved by Councillor Garry Thibert 
Seconded by Councillor Laura Ross 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the November 14, 2024 meeting adjourn at 5:45 p.m. 

CARRIED – unanimous  
 
 

 
              
     Mayor        Clerk 



 

 

DATE: MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024       6.3 
 

THE CORPORATION TOWN OF MATTAWA 
 
 
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council adopt the minutes of the Regular meeting of Monday 

November 11, 2024 and the Special meeting of Thursday November 14, 2024. 

 
 



DATE: MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024                    7.1 
 

THE CORPORATION TOWN OF MATTAWA 
 
 
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
WHEREAS municipalities face growing infrastructure needs, including roads, bridges, public 
transit, water system and other critical services, which are essential to community well-being 
and economic development;  
 
AND WHEREAS the current sources of municipal revenue, including property taxes and user 
fees, are insufficient to meet these increasing demands for infrastructure investment;  
 
AND WHEREAS the Province of Ontario currently collects the Land Transfer Tax (LTT) on 
property transactions in municipalities across the province, generating significant revenue that 
is not directly shared with municipalities; 
 
AND WHEREAS the Federal Government collects Goods and Services Tax (GST) on 
property transactions, a portion of which could be directed to municipalities to address local 
infrastructure needs;  
 
AND WHEREAS redistributing a portion of the Provincial Land Tax and GST to municipalities 
would provide a predicable and sustainable source of funding for local infrastructure projects 
without creating a new tax burden on residents or homebuyers;  
 
AND WHEREAS a redistribution of a portion of the existing Land Transfer Tax and GST 
would allow municipalities to better plan and invest in long-term infrastructure initiatives, 
supporting local economic growth and improving the quality of life for residents. 
 
THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Town of 
Mattawa formally requests the Provincial Government to consider redistributing a portion of 
the Land Transfer Tax collected on property transactions to municipalities;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa calls on the 
Federal Government to allocate a percentage of the GST collected on property sales to 
municipalities;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT this redistribution of the Land Transfer Tax and GST should be 
structured to provide predictable and sustainable funding to municipalities, allowing for better 
long-term planning and investment in infrastructure projects that benefit local communities, 
thus ensuring that local governments receive a fair share of the revenue to address critical 
infrastructure needs;  
 
AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Prime Minister Justin 
Trudeau, Premier Doug Ford, the Ontario Minister of Finance, the Minister of Municipal Affairs 
and Housing, MP Anthony Rota, MPP Vic Fedeli, the Association of Municipalities of Ontario 
(AMO) and all 444 Municipalities in Ontario. 



8.1







From: AMO Policy
To: Amy Leclerc
Subject: AMO Policy Update – Encampments and Opioid Crisis
Date: Thursday, November 7, 2024 4:55:43 PM

AMO Policy Update -
Encampments and Opioid Crisis 

Comprehensive Provincial Approach Needed to Make Tangible
Progress on Homeless Encampments and the Opioid Crisis

Municipalities across Ontario understand the need for urgent action to

8.2

mailto:policy@amo.on.ca
mailto:clerk@mattawa.ca


address both the rising number of homeless encampments and the
opioid crisis. There are more than 1400 encampments across the
province. We can do better for our most vulnerable Ontarians and our
broader communities.  

Decades of isolated policy decisions made by successive provincial
governments have compounded problems. More people are facing
income insecurity. Health care and mental health demands are not
being met. Help with addiction is hard to get. Affordable housing is
desperately needed everywhere.  

We need provincial action that is going to help the Ontarians who are
struggling today and also tackle the root causes of homelessness so
the crisis does not continue to grow. 

Earlier this year, AMO released two policy papers calling for provincial
action on the opioid crisis and homeless encampments. AMO
engaged with municipal members, police, paramedics, and mental
health and addictions and housing experts over the course of months
to identify the suite of actions needed.  

This is a complex problem that won’t be solved by simple, short-term
solutions. We need a comprehensive approach, including:  

Provincial guidance that supports an appropriate and consistent
approach to encampments across the province;

Improvements to the income security system that leave too many
living in poverty, and more than 1 million people in Ontario using
food banks last year;

Significant investments in deeply affordable housing and
supportive housing;

Long-term, sustainable, and substantial investment in prevention
programs;

Expanding access to voluntary and evidence-based treatment
with same-day access and scaling up 24/7 crisis centres; and, 

Ensuring local say on the harm reduction approaches needed

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2F2ke8gl%2Fe6ql0tme%2F2ohtmx&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C7916bb8660884f8aa77d08dcff76ebab%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638666133428559964%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=aGMywxiAcaAUO6orgUw2u7XIedu7yq450r52uWYI4p8%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2F2ke8gl%2Fe6ql0tme%2Fihitmx&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C7916bb8660884f8aa77d08dcff76ebab%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638666133428589467%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=yEszDkCkIS%2BGhitvpg0z7HYnIVMeOzqTJHUnD0K3css%3D&reserved=0


within local communities.

The current Ontario government did not create this crisis, but it has
the resources and the wherewithal to take the comprehensive actions
needed to solve it. Municipalities are ready to work together with the
provincial government to tackle this systemic problem.   
 

This policy update is also available on AMO's Website.

 

*Disclaimer: The Association of Municipalities of Ontario (AMO) is unable to provide any warranty regarding the accuracy or completeness
of third-party submissions. Distribution of these items does not imply an endorsement of the views, information or services mentioned.

Association of Municipalities of Ontario

To unsubscribe, please| Opt Out

155 University Ave Suite 800 | Toronto, ON M5H 3B7 CA

https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Fclick%2F2ke8gl%2Fe6ql0tme%2Fy9itmx&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C7916bb8660884f8aa77d08dcff76ebab%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638666133428608478%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=L8Eyf4Zqn4YoSu4%2FQhygktJWW5LYkreuDKtLU9BR7d0%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Ft.e2ma.net%2Foptout%2F2ke8gl%2Fe6ql0tme%3Fs%3DFZ2mNhFsrGuUr5yHIQah0Jk3v2riLPhRlIgtQNvSJ_0&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C7916bb8660884f8aa77d08dcff76ebab%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638666133428626363%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=xsxWnQD5T13quGCY5%2FjDGIq5RoR2dQ3RwoXxLTXktXk%3D&reserved=0


November 8, 2024 

The Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building, Queen’s Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 
Sent via email: premier@ontario.ca 

Re: Establishment of an Ontario Rural Road Safety Program 

Please be advised that the Council of the Municipality of North Perth passed the 
following resolution at their meeting on November 4th, 2024:  

Moved by Lee Anne Andriessen Seconded by Neil Anstett 

WHEREAS official statistics from the Government of Ontario confirm that rural 
roads are inherently more dangerous than other roads; 

AND WHEREAS, despite only having 17% of the population, 55% of the road 
fatalities occur on rural roads; 

AND WHEREAS, rural, northern, and remote municipalities are fiscally strained 
by maintaining extensive road networks on a smaller tax base; 

AND WHEREAS, preventing crashes reduces the burden on Ontario’s already 
strained rural strained health care system; 

AND WHEREAS, roadway collisions and associated lawsuits are significant 
factors in runaway municipal insurance premiums. Preventing crashes can have 
a significant impact in improving municipal risk profiles; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Municipality of North Perth requests 
that the Government of Ontario take action to implement the rural road safety 
program that Good Roads has committed to lead. It will allow Ontario's rural 
municipalities to make the critical investments needed to reduce the high number 
of people being killed and seriously injured on Ontario’s rural roads; and 

FURTHER THAT the Municipality of North Perth requests that the Government of 
Ontario invests in the rural road safety program that Good Roads has committed 
to lead; and  

8.3

mailto:premier@ontario.ca


 

FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, 
Hon. Prabmeet Sarkaria, Minister of Transportation, Hon. King Surma, Minister of 
Infrastructure, Hon. Rob Flack, Minister of Agriculture, Hon. Lisa Thompson, 
Minister of Rural Affairs, Hon. Trevor Jones, Associate Minister of Emergency 
Preparedness and Response, and Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and 
Good Roads; and 

 
FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to all municipalities in Ontario 
requesting their support. 
 

If you have any questions regarding the above resolution, please do not hesitate to 
contact me.  
 
Sincerely,  

 

 
Lindsay Cline 
Clerk/Legislative Services Supervisor 
 

CC:  Minister of Transportation 
 Minister of Infrastructure 
 Minister of Agriculture 
 Minister of Rural Affairs 
 Associate Minister of Emergency Preparedness and Response 
 Minister of Health 
 Good Roads 
 All municipalities in Ontario 



T: 705-752-2740 

E: municipality@eastferris.ca     

25 Taillefer Road, Corbeil, ON. P0H 1K0  eastferris.ca 

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 
HELD 

 November 12th, 2024 

2024-238 
Moved by Councillor Champagne 
Seconded by Councillor Kelly 

THAT Council for the Municipality of East Ferris supports the resolution received from the North 

Bay Parry Sound District Health Unit and endorses the Perspectives from Northern Ontario on 

the Public Health Funding Review letter;  

AND FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be sent to Dr. Kieran Moore (Chief Medical 

Officer of Health), the Honourable Sylvia Jones (Ontario Minister of Health), Elizabeth Walker 

(Executive Lead, Office of the Chief Medical Officer of Health), Boards of Health of Ontario, the 

Honourable Vic Fedeli (MPP, Nipissing), the Honourable Graydon Smith (MPP, Muskoka-Parry 

Sound), and the Honourable John Vanthof (MPP, Timiskaming-Cochrane), Association of 

Municipalities of Ontario, The District of Parry Sound Municipal Association, and member 

municipalities. 

Carried Mayor Rochefort 

 CERTIFIED to be a true copy of 
Resolution No. 2024-238 passed by the 
Council of the Municipality of East Ferris 
on the 12th day of November, 2024. 

Kari Hanselman, Dipl. M.A. 
Clerk 

8.4

mailto:municipality@eastferris.ca




























15 Janey Ave., North Bay, ON P1B 8G3       P: 705-474-5420    F:705-474-9793       www.nbmca.ca 

November 15, 2024 

To: Member Municipalities of the North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority 

Re: 2025 Draft Budget – Notice of Meeting to Approve the 
North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority 2025 Draft Budget 

In shadowing previous years and adhering to the requirements of the Conservation Authorities Act (O. Reg. 
402/22) prescriptive budgetary process, the North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) is required to 
provide a 30 day notice prior to approval of the Final Budget. 

This process provides for an open, transparent and consistent approach to budgeting across Conservation 
Authorities province wide.   

The North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) Board will review and consider approval of the 2025 
Budget at the December 2024 Board Meeting (week of Dec 16, to be confirmed) beginning at 4:00 p.m., held at 
the Administrative Office located at 15 Janey Avenue, North Bay.  Once approved, the final budget will be 
provided to the Minister of Natural Resources (MNR), all Member Municipalities and will be posted on the 
NBMCA website:  https://nbmca.ca/governance/budget-and-audited-financial-statements/ 

The draft budget for 2025, including each Member Municipality’s apportionment for 2025 is attached.  Overall, 
the general levy has increased by 5.85% when compared to 2024; however, each municipality’s increase varies, 
as it is calculated using the applicable Modified Current Value Assessment provided by MNR. As well, some 
municipalities have sole-benefitting levies for programs that are only provided to them. 

NBMCA staff are available for meetings on the budget within the 30 day consultation period, to support 
discussions with member municipalities as needed.  

Yours truly, 

Robin Allen 
Interim Chief Administrative Officer, Secretary Treasurer 
Email: Robin.Allen@nbmca.ca 
Cell: 705-774-8448 

Attachments:  Draft Budget 2025 

8.5

mailto:Robin.Allen@nbmca.ca


 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 

2025 Draft Budget 
November 15, 2024 
 
Prepared by 
Robin Allen, Interim CAO, Secretary Treasurer 
Aaron Lougheed, Manager, Finance 

 
 
 
 
 



 
NBMCA | 2025 Budget 

Contents 
1. Introduction ............................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue ................................................................................ 3 

3. Status of the Mortgage Loan ..................................................................................................... 4 

4. Revenue Sources ....................................................................................................................... 4 

4.1 General Information ................................................................................................................ 4 

4.2 All Revenue Sources ................................................................................................................ 5 

4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts ......................................................................................................... 5 

5. Expenditures .............................................................................................................................. 7 

5.1 Overview of Expenditures ....................................................................................................... 7 

5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue ................................................................ 8 

5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases .......................................................................................... 8 

6. 2025 Budget Summary .............................................................................................................. 9 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  3 

1. Introduction 
 
The North Bay-Mattawa Conservation Authority (NBMCA) provides leadership through 
coordination of watershed planning, implementation of resource management programs and 
promotion of conservation awareness in collaboration with others.  
 
NBMCA is one of 36 Conservation Authorities in Ontario and was established under the 
Conservation Authorities Act in 1972 by member municipalities. NBMCA is a member of 
Conservation Ontario. NBMCA is governed by a 12-member Board of Directors, appointed by 
the 10 member municipalities.  
 
The 2025 Budget is $4,235,860. 

2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue  
 
Below is a brief look at the NBMCA reserve accounts and deferred revenue as of November 1, 
2024, and an estimate to end of year 2024. These figures are unaudited. 
 

Table 1: Reserve Accounts 
Reserve Account As of Nov. 1, 2024 

(UNAUDITED) 
NBMCA Lands Acquisition - Capital $21,984 
NBMCA Onsite Sewage System (OSS) Program (under the 
Ontario Building Code Part 8) - Operating 

$279,788 

Laurentian Snowboarding Club and Ski Hill - Operating $50,789 
Laurentian Snowboarding Club and Ski Hill - Capital $127,852 
 

Table 2: Deferred Revenue Status and Estimates 
Program As of Nov 1, 2024 

(UNAUDITED) 
Estimated at  
Dec. 31, 2024 

Water and Erosion Control Infrastructure 
(WECI) - Capital/Special Projects 

$100,000 $100,000 

 
The deferred revenue is for committed projects spanning multiple years; for programs funded 
on a different fiscal year (usually provincial or federal initiatives); and planned activities that 
were not completed in the year budgeted for various reasons.  
 
 
 
 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  4 

3. Status of the Mortgage Loan 
 
The NBMCA has two offices: the head administrative office in North Bay, which is owned by 
NBMCA, and office space rented from a separate property owner in Parry Sound. The TD Bank 
mortgage loan on the North Bay administrative office building was renegotiated in June 2022 at 
an interest rate of 4.65%, and expires June 22, 2027.  
 
The mortgage principal outstanding as of November 1, 2024 was $520,400 and is estimated to 
decrease to $490,650 by the end of 2025. The blended payments comprise of principal and 
interest amounts and will be expensed monthly to the Corporate Services operating budget as 
follows. 

• Principal payments in 2025: estimated mortgage principal payment: $18,500.  
• Interest payments in 2025: estimated mortgage interest payment: $24,750.  

4. Revenue Sources 
4.1 General Information 
 
Generally, NBMCA funding comes from several sources: 

• Transfer Payments (if applications submitted are approved) from the Ministry of 
Natural Resources (MNR) and Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) 

o MNRF: Provincial Section 39 Transfer Payment 
o MNRF: Water and Erosion Control Infrastructure (WECI) 
o MNRF: Flood Hazard Identification and Mapping Program (FHIMP) 
o MECP: Drinking Water Source Protection. 

• Municipal Levy 
o General Levy: apportioned to all municipalities using the Modified Current Value 

Assessment (MCVA) provided by MNRF 
o Sole-Benefitting Levy: applied to a single municipality for work undertaken by 

NBMCA upon which the municipality is solely benefitting. 
• Self Generated Revenue 

o Fees for the Septic System Program, Regulation Permit, Plan Review  
o Natural Classroom user fees (main office in North Bay) 
o Property Rentals 
o Interest earned 
o Donations 

• Other Grants/Revenue (programs/available funds vary from year to year) 
o Sponsorships 
o Administrative Overhead Charges 
o Canada Summer Jobs funding 
o Northern Ontario Heritage Fund Corporation (NOHFC) funding 
o Other 

 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  5 

4.2 All Revenue Sources 
 
The 2025 Budget is $4,235,860. An overview of revenue sources for 2024 is provided below. 
The ski hill request for capital cost support is shown separately. 
 

Table 3: 2024 Budget Revenue Sources 
 

Source Amount 
Transfer Payments $472,919 
Municipal Levy $1,581,736 
Self Generated Revenue $1,221,088 
Other Grants/Revenue $653,825 
Deferred Revenue $100,000 
Reserves $206,292 
TOTAL $4,235,860 

 
4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts 
 
The 2025 Budget proposes a 5.84% increase in general levy compared to 2024.  
 
Helpful definitions are provided below. 

• Modified Current Value Assessment (MCVA): data provided by MNRF annually and 
used to calculate (apportion) the general levy for each member municipality. 

• General Levy: apportioned to all municipalities using the MCVA provided by MNRF. 
• Sole-benefitting Levy/Sole-benefit Levy: applied to a municipality for work undertaken 

by NBMCA that solely benefits that municipality. 
 
The total municipal levy proposed for 2025 is $1,581,736: 

• A general levy of $1,021,189 applied to all member municipalities. 
• A sole-benefitting levy of $530,547 to the City of North Bay for additional water 

resources management support, including the maintenance and operation of the Parks 
Creek Backflow Control Structure, Ice Management, WECI projects, Emerald Ash Borer 
Management, Encampment Cleanup on CA lands, increased parks support, and 
operation of the Laurentian Ski Hill. 

• A sole-benefitting levy of $30,000 to the Municipality of Callander for Floodplain 
Mapping projects. 

 
The following tables outline the calculation of levy amounts for all participating municipalities 
for both operating and capital expenses. 

 
 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  6 

 
Table 4: 2025 Budget – Municipal Levy Overview 

 

Municipality MCVA TOTAL LEVY 
2025 

 OPERATING  Capital 

 General Levy   Sole-benefit 
Levy  

 Total 
Operating 

Levy  

 Sole-benefit 
Levy  

Total Capital 
Levy 

 
Bonfield 3.45  $          35,199   $      35,199     $           35,199     $                   -     

Calvin 1.23  $          12,585   $      12,585     $           12,585     $                   -     

Chisholm 1.51  $          15,399   $      15,399     $           15,399     $                   -     

East Ferris 6.39  $          65,249   $      65,249     $           65,249     $                   -     

Mattawa 0.99  $          10,063   $      10,063     $           10,063     $                   -     

Mattawan 0.06  $               634   $            634     $                634     $                   -     

North Bay 79.07  $    1,338,015   $    807,468   $    367,000   $     1,174,468   $    163,547   $       163,547   

Papineau-
Cameron 0.80  $            8,190   $        8,190     $             8,190     $                   -     

Callander 6.46  $          95,985   $      65,985   $      30,000   $           95,985     $                   -     

Powassan 0.04  $               417   $            417     $                417     $                   -     

  Total  $    1,581,735   $1,021,188   $    397,000   $     1,418,188   $    163,547   $       163,547   

 
 

Table 5: 2024-2025 Budget Comparison – Municipal Levy Overview 
 

Municipality Area % 
in CA MCVA 2025 General Levy 

2025 
MCVA 
2024 

General 
Levy 2024 Diff '25-'24 

 
Bonfield 100 3.45 $35,199 3.43 $32,988 $2,211  

Calvin 100 1.23 $12,585 1.23 $11,871 $714  

Chisholm 94 1.51 $15,399 1.50 $14,383 $1,016  

East Ferris 83 6.39 $65,249 6.29 $60,528 $4,720  

Mattawa 71 0.99 $10,063 0.98 $9,385 $678  

Mattawan 19 0.06 $634 0.06 $597 $37  

North Bay 100 79.07 $807,468 79.23 $761,790 $45,678  

Papineau-Cameron 35 0.80 $8,190 0.80 $7,691 $499  

Callander 100 6.46 $65,985 6.44 $61,917 $4,069  

Powassan 1 0.04 $417 0.04 $395 $23  

    Total $1,021,188   $961,544 $59,644  

  2025 General Levy $1,021,188 5.84%      

  2024 General Levy $961,544        

 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  7 

5. Expenditures 
 
5.1 Overview of Expenditures 
An overview of the 2024 Budget expenditures is provided below. 

• Annual programming/operations and administration: 
o Corporate Services/ “General Functions” including: 

 Administration of staff and operations 
 Governance (Board of Directors, related committees) support 
 Finance 
 Human Resources 
 Communications 
 Geographic Information Systems (GIS) 
 Information Technology (IT) 

o Water Resources Management including: 
 On-site Sewage Systems Program 
 Flood Forecasting and Warning 
 Flood and Erosion Control 
 Ice Management 
 Low Water Response 
 Watershed Monitoring 
 Drinking Water Source Protection 

o Conservation Areas and Lands including public parks maintenance, natural 
resources conservation and stewardship partnerships 

o Planning and Regulations including plan input and review, Section 28 regulations 
and permitting 

• Capital improvements: 
o North Bay main office – HVAC control unit, boiler, hot water tank, exterior 

lighting, windows (phase 1), vinyl siding (phase 1) 
o Kinsmen Bridge repair in North Bay 
o Culvert repair/replacement at Kinsmen/Kate Pace Way  
o Signage for conservation areas 

• Special projects and studies:  
o Asset Management Plan (multi-year) 
o Floodplain mapping (multi-year)  
o Parks Creek Backflood Control Structure Capacity Upgrade Study (multi-year) 
o Chippewa Creek Erosion Control Project (multi-year) 
o Mattawa Natural Hazard Risk Study Terms of Reference (multi-year) 
o Conservation Areas Inventory and Strategy Projects (multi-year) 
o Watershed Based Resource Management Strategy (multi-year 

 
Overall, the 2025 Budget reflects the annual objectives of the NBMCA and also considers 
long-term requirements to support the health and climate resiliency of watershed residents. 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  8 

5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue  
 
Budget 2025 estimates modest use of reserve, surplus, and deferred revenue amounts. The 
table below provides an overview of the usage estimated for 2025.  
 
Note that deferred revenue is for committed projects spanning multiple years; for programs 
funded on a different fiscal year (usually provincial or federal initiatives); and planned activities 
that were not completed in the year budgeted for various reasons. 
 

Table 5: Estimated Use Deferred Revenue in 2025 

Reserve, Surplus, and 
Deferred Revenue 

As of Nov 1, 2024 
(UNAUDITED) 

Estimated at 
Dec. 31, 2024 

Proposed 
Budget 2025 Program Details 

Lands Capital Acquisition - 
Reserve  $21,984   $21,984   $ -      

On-site Sewage System (OSS) 
Program - Reserve  $279,788   $213,815   $ -    Decrease due to Anticipated 

Operating Deficit in FY 2024 

Surplus  $621,306   $819,154   $202,931  
Operating Surplus - includes 
balances previously allocated to 
Deferred Revenue 

Water and Erosion Control 
Infrastructure (WECI) - Capital/ 
Special Projects 

 $ -     $100,000   $100,000  Deferred Revenue for WECI 
projects 

    Total $302,931   

 
5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases 
In 2009 the NBMCA and other public sector organizations adopted Section 3150, Tangible 
Capital Assets of the Public Sector Accounting Handbook. This change resulted in the disclosure 
of information on major categories of tangible capital assets and amortization of these assets in 
the audited financial statements. The details on how this was undertaken is described in the 
Board approved NBMCA Tangible Capital Asset Policy (TCAP).  
 
As a result of the TCAP, it is the practice of NBMCA to pay for and record acquisition of capital 
assets as follows: 

• Use of a one-time cost recovery method. This is accomplished by budgeting for the 
acquisition of the asset in the year it is acquired. This cost recovery method is typically 
used when NBMCA is constructing a facility, such as a building, flood and erosion control 
works, or purchasing a large piece of equipment. 

• Use of a cost recovery over time method. This is accomplished by budgeting for the 
acquisition of an asset over its defined lifetime in years. Annual budgets include 
expenditures in the form of “internal leases” that are equal to the depreciation rate or 
life span of the asset. Typically, this method is best suited for smaller capital items with 
shorter life spans that are replaced on a regular basis such as vehicles, computers, 
plotters and so on. 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  9 

The 2024 budget includes both methods of capital acquisition. The cost recovery over time 
method is being used to replace computers, laptops and most tablets. The use of the one-time 
cost recovery method is part of the capital and special projects program budgets.  

6. 2025 Budget Summary 
 
Following changes in the Conservation Authorities Act, Budget 2025 follows the same 
procedures as Budget 2024 in the allocation of funding for Category 1, 2, and 3 program areas.  
 
Program budgets are presented as follows:  

• Category 1 (mandatory),  
• Category 2 (delegated by municipalities) and  
• Category 3 (non mandatory) programs and services.  

 
The Table below provides a summary of the program areas. 
 

Table 6: NBMCA Programs and Services 
 

Program Area Description 
Category 1 (Mandatory) 
A. Corporate Services 
(“General Functions” 
per O. Reg. 402/22) 
 
Category 1 
(Mandatory) 

These are operating expenses and capital costs that are not related to 
the provision of a specific program or service, but rather provide a 
corporate-wide supporting function. Includes: governance support, 
finance, human resources, geographical information systems (GIS), 
information technology (IT), communications, legal expenses, office 
equipment and supplies, administrative office buildings, vehicle fleet, 
asset management, etc. These were previously called Administration 
(operating), Interpretive Centre (operating), Outreach (operating), 
Central Services (capital) and Mortgage Principal Repayment programs in 
the 2023 NBMCA budget book. 

B. Planning and 
Regulations 
 
Category 1 
(Mandatory) 

These are operating expenses. The main goal is to protect life and 
property from natural hazards specified in O. Reg. 686/21. Includes: 
natural hazard input and review for member municipalities, planning 
boards, and unincorporated areas; Section 28 permitting process; and 
technical studies such as updating the regulated areas. These were 
previously called Section 28 (operating), Watershed Planning (operating), 
and S. 28 DIA Technical (special studies) programs in the 2023 NBMCA 
budget book.  

C. Water Resources 
Management 
 
Category 1 
(Mandatory) 

These are operating expenses and capital costs. The main goal is to 
protect life and property from natural hazards specified in O. Reg. 
686/21. Includes: flood forecasting and warning, flood and erosion 
control, ice management, natural hazard infrastructure operational plan 
and asset management plan, low water response, watershed-based 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  10 

Program Area Description 
resource management strategy, and watershed monitoring (provincial 
partnership surface water and groundwater monitoring programs). 
These were previously called Flood Forecasting, Flood Control, Erosion 
Control, Ice Management, Water Quality (operating programs) and S. 28 
DIA Technical, Integrated Watershed Management (IWM), and Water 
Erosion Control Infrastructure (WECI) (capital programs) in the 2023 
NBMCA budget book. 

D. Conservation Areas 
and Lands 
 
Category 1 
(Mandatory) 

These are operating expenses and capital costs. The main goal is to 
protect, conserve and manage conservation areas and lands owned by 
NBMCA, including providing safe, passive recreation to the public. 
Includes: management of NBMCA owned lands including public parks 
and trails, Section 29 enforcement, maintenance of assets such as 
bridges, benches, pavilions, etc., tree planting on NBMCA lands, land 
inventory, conservation area strategy, policy for land acquisition and 
disposition, Planning Act comments as the land owner. These were 
previously called Lands and Properties (operating and capital programs) 
in the 2023 NBMCA budget book. 

E. Source Protection 
Authority (SPA) 
 
Category 1 
(Mandatory) 

These are operating expenses. The main goal is to protect existing and 
future municipal drinking water sources in the North Bay-Mattawa 
Source Protection Authority (NBMSPA) per the Clean Water Act, 2006. 
Includes: governance support to a Source Protection Committee and to 
the NBMSPA, technical studies, policy updates/development, proposal 
review and comments, plan input and review, and significant threat 
policy implementation. This was previously called Source Water 
Protection (operating program) in the 2023 NBMCA budget book. 

F. On-site Sewage 
System (OSS) Program 
 
Category 1 
(Mandatory) 

These are operating expenses. The main goal is to regulate existing and 
new septic systems to protect the environment per the Building Code 
Act, 1992, Part 8. Includes: permitting and compliance for on-site sewage 
systems (septic systems) in municipalities and unorganized townships, 
and mandatory maintenance inspections to over 500 properties 
identified under the Clean Water Act, 2006. This was previously called 
the same (OSS operating program) in the 2023 NBMCA budget book. 

Category 2 (Delegated by a Municipality) 
G. Watershed-
Municipal Programs 
 
Category 2 (Delegated 
by a Municipality) 

These are operating expenses. Includes: watershed-wide monitoring that 
supplement the mandatory watershed monitoring (under Water 
Resources Management program area), and septic system reinspection 
program under the Trout Lake Management Plan. This was previously 
Integrated Watershed Management (special studies/capital program) 
and Water Quality (operating program) in the 2023 NBMCA budget book. 

Category 3 (Non mandatory; advisable by NBMCA) 
H. Watershed- Support 
Programs 

These are operating expenses and capital costs. These are programs and 
services that NBMCA has determined are advisable to provide to further 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  11 

Program Area Description 
 
Category 3 (Non 
mandatory; advisable 
by NBMCA) 

the purposes of the Conservation Authorities Act. Includes: benthics 
monitoring, watershed report card, land acquisition and disposition, land 
lease and agreement management, stewardship and restoration, 
Miskwaadesi (Painted Turtle site), septic systems related plan input and 
review, Mattawa River Canoe Race. This was previously Integrated 
Watershed Management (special studies/capital program), Water 
Quality (operating), Outreach (operating), Lands and Property (operating 
and capital) in the 2023 NBMCA budget book. 

I. Ski Hill 
 
Category 3 (Non 
mandatory; advisable 
by NBMCA) 

These are operating expenses and capital costs. Supports the Laurentian 
Ski Hill Snowboarding Club which is operated by a separate Board and 
staff. NBMCA owns most of the major capital assets as well as the land 
on which the ski hill operates. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  12 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) Program Area: A. Corporate Services 
Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

Revenue:   
01 Transfer Payment $              133,490 
04 General Levy $              268,938 
06 Fees $                  3,500 
07 Donations $                     500 
09 Internal Rent $                12,865 
10 External Rent $                36,005 
14 Interest Earned $                54,000 
16 Admin Overhead $              653,825 

 Total Revenue $           1,163,123 
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $              626,763 
38 Per Diem $                10,000 
39 Members Mileage $                  5,500 
40 Members Expense $                  2,000 
41 Staff Mileage and Expense $                20,000 
42 Staff Certification and Training $                10,000 
43 Telephone $                35,000 
45 Insurance $                50,000 
46 Natural Gas $                20,400 
48 Office Supplies $                  6,500 
49 Postage $                  1,500 
50 Equipment Purchase $                  1,000 
51 Equipment Rental $                  8,000 
54 Bank Charges $                  2,000 
55 Interest Expense - Mortgage $                30,000 
57 Staff Appreciation and Clothing $                20,000 
58 Audit $                26,945 
59 Legal Services $                75,000 
60 Materials and Supply $                15,000 
61 Cons. Ontario Levy $                26,815 
62 Services $                70,000 
70 Rental Expense $                36,000 
71 Water $                  6,200 
72 Hydro $                25,000 
73 Vehicle Gas $                     700 
74 Accounting Services $                  1,800 
78 Internal Chargeback $                12,500 
91 Mortgage Principal Repayment $                18,500 

 Total Expense $           1,163,123 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  13 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) 
Program Area: A. Corporate Services Capital 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
04 General Levy $                        - 
13 Other Revenue $           206,292 
  Total Revenue $           206,292 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $             31,294 
62 Services $           161,700 
67 Admin Overhead $             13,298 

 Total Expenses $           206,292 

 Net $                       0 
 
Category: 1 (Mandatory) 
Program Area: B. Planning and Regulations 

 
Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
04 General Levy $             106,419 
06 Fees $               70,000 
  Total Revenue $             176,419 

   
   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $             121,796 
41 Staff mileage and expense $                  2,000 
42 Staff Certification & Training $                  5,000 
67 Admin Overhead $               41,795 
78 Internal Chargeback $                  5,828 

 Total Expenses $             176,419 

 Net $                         0 
  



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  14 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) Program Area: C. Water Resources Management 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
1 MNR Transfer Payment $             30,000 
4 General Levy $           425,132 
5 Sole-Benefitting Levy $             50,000 
13 Other Revenue $                        - 
  Total Revenue $           505,132 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $           224,991 
41 Staff Mileage and Expenses $               1,500 
42 Staff Cert. And Training $               3,500 
44 Taxes $             20,572 
45 Insurance $             37,075 
47 Repairs and Maintenance $             10,000 
62 Services $             10,000 
66 Consulting $             60,000 
67 Admin Overhead $           125,385 
72 Hydro $               1,020 
73 Vehicle Gas $               3,000 
78 Internal Chargeback $               8,089 

 Total Expenses $           505,132 

 Net $                       0 
 
Category: 1 (Mandatory) Program Area: C. Water Resources Management Capital 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 
Revenue:   
01 MNR Transfer Payment $           100,000 
05 Sole-Benefitting Levy $             18,547 
13 Other Revenue $           100,000 
  Total Revenue $           218,547 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $              40,237 
66 Consulting Services $           159,762 
67 Administrative Overhead $             13,298 
78 Internal Chargeback $               5,250 

 Total Expenses $           218,547 

 Net $                       0 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  15 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) Program Area: D. Conservation Areas and Lands 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
04 General Levy $           220,699 
05 Special Levy $           250,000 
07 Donations $                        - 
10 External Property Rental $             40,000 
13 Other Revenue $                        - 
  Total Revenue $          510,699 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $         263,667 
44 Taxes $            17,251 
45 Insurance $            15,897 
47 Repairs and Maintenance $            25,000 
60 Materials and Supplies $              9,000 
62 Services $            40,000 
64 Vehicle Lease $                       - 
67 Admin Overhead $          134,884 
73 Vehicle Gas $              5,000 

 Total Expenses $          510,699 

 Net $                       - 
 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) Program Area: D.  

Conservation Areas and Lands Capital 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
04 General Levy $                          - 
05 Special Levy $               80,000 
  Total Revenue $               80,000 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $               26,021 
62 Services $               42,580 
67 Admin Overhead $               11,399 

 Total Expenses $               80,000 

 Net $                         0 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  16 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) 
 
Program Area: E. Source Protection Authority 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category  2025 Budget  

    
Revenue:   
01 MOECP Transfer Payment $             209,429 
  Total Revenue $             209,429 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $             160,501 
38 Per Diem $                 1,500 
39 Members Mileage $                 2,000 
40 Members Expenses $                 1,000 
41 Staff Mileage & Expense $                 2,500 
45 Insurance $                 2,600 
53 Advertising/Communications $                    500 
62 Services $                 3,500 
67 Admin Overhead $               18,998 
70 Rental Expense $               12,865 
73 Vehicle gas $                    500 
78 Internal Chargeback $                 2,965 

 Total Expenses $             209,429 

 Net $                         0 
  



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  17 

Category: 1 (Mandatory) 
 
Program Area: F. On-site Sewage System Program 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
06 Fees $          954,718 
13 Other Revenue $            12,000 
  Total Revenue $          966,718 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $          641,700 
41 Staff Mileage & Expense $              3,000 
42 Staff Certification & Training $              5,000 
56 Credit Card Charges $            16,500 
67 Admin Overhead $          265,968 
73 Vehicle Gas $              8,000 
78 Internal Chargeback $            26,550 

 Total Expenses $          966,718 

 Net $                       - 
 

Category: 2 (Delegated by a Municipality) 

Program Area: G. Watershed-Municipal Programs 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
4 General Levy $                     - 
5 Sole-benefitting Levy $          12,000 
  Total Revenue $          12,000 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $          12,000 
67 Admin Overhead $                     - 

 Total Expenses $          12,000 

 Net $                     - 
 
 
 
 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  18 

Category: 3 (non-mandatory; advisable by NBMCA) 
 
Program Area: H. Watershed Support Programs 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

    
Revenue:    
4 General Levy $                     - 
6 Fees $          15,000 
7 Donations $          22,500 
  Total Revenue $          37,500 

   
Expense:   
30 Wages and Benefits $             8,143 
52 Publications and Printing $                500 
53 Advertising $             2,000 
60 Mat. & Supplies $             7,500 
62 Services $           15,057 
67 Admin Overhead $             3,800 
73 Vehicle Gas $                500 

 Total Expenses $          37,500 

 Net $                     - 
 
  



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  19 

Category: 3 (non-mandatory; advisable by NBMCA) 
Program Area: I. Ski Hill Operating 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

    
Revenue:    
05 Sole-benefitting Levy $          85,000 
  Total Revenue $          85,000 

   
Expense:   
67 Admin Overhead $          25,000 
47 Ski Hill Operations $          60,000 

 Total Expenses $          85,000 

 Net $                     - 
 
Category: 3 (non-mandatory; advisable by NBMCA) 
Program Area: I. Ski Hill Capital 
 

Object Code Revenue/Expense Category 2025 Budget 

   
Revenue:   
05 Sole-benefitting Levy $          65,000 
  Total Revenue $          65,000 

   
Expense:   
47 Ski Hill Operations $          65,000 

 Total Expenses $          65,000 

 Net $                     - 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  20 

 Revenue/Expense Category TOTAL BUDGET 2025 
Revenue:   
1 Transfer Payment (S. 39) $         133,490 
1 Transfer Payment (WECI) $         100,000 
1 Transfer Payment (DWSP) $         209,429 
1 Transfer Payment (FHIMP) $           30,000 
4 General Levy $      1,021,189 
5 Sole-benefitting Levy $         560,547 
6 Fees $      1,043,218 
7 Donations $           23,000 
9 Internal Rent Rev. $           12,865 
10 Rental Rev. External $           76,005 
13 Other Revenue $         318,292 
14 Interest Earned $           54,000 
16 Admin Overhead $         653,825 
  Total Revenue $      4,235,860 
Expense:  
30 Wages and Benefits $      2,158,278 
38 Per Diem $           11,500 
39 Members Mileage $             7,500 
40 Members Expense $             3,000 
41 Staff Mileage and Expense $           29,000 
42 Staff Certification and Training $           23,500 
43 Telephone $           35,000 
44 Property Taxes $           37,823 
45 Insurance $         105,572 
46 Natural Gas $           20,400 
47 Repair & Maintenance $           35,000 
48 Office Supplies $             6,500 
49 Postage $             1,500 
50 Equipment Purchase $             1,000 
51 Equipment Rental $             8,000 
52 Publications and Printing $                500 
53 Advertising $             2,500 
54 Bank Charges $             2,000 
55 Interest Expense - Mortgage $           30,000 
56 Credit Card Fees $           16,500 
57 Staff Appreciation and Clothing $           20,000 
58 Audit $           26,945 



  
NBMCA | 2025 Budget  21 

59 Legal Services $           75,000 
60 Materials and Supply $           31,500 
61 Cons. Ontario Levy $           26,815 
62 Services $         342,228 
66 Consulting Services $         219,762 
67 Admin Overhead $         653,270 
70 Rental Expense $           48,865 
71 Water $             6,200 
72 Hydro $           26,020 
73 Vehicle Gas $           17,700 
74 Accounting Services $             1,800 
78 Internal Chargeback $           61,182 
90 Mortgage Principal Repayment $           18,500 
TBD Ski Hill Operations $           60,000 
TBD Ski Hill Capital $           65,000 
  Total Expenses $     4,235,860 
  Net Surplus (-Deficit) $                      - 

 



1

November 18, 2024 

Via Email: premier@ontario.ca 

Honourable Doug Ford 
Premier of Ontario 
Legislative Building, Queen’s Park 
Toronto, ON M7A 1A1 

Via Email: Prabmeet.Sarkaria@pc.ola.org 

Honourable Prabmeet Singh Sarkaria 
Minister of Transportation 
777 Bay Street, 5th Floor 
Toronto, ON M7A 1Z8 

Dear Hon. Doug Ford, Premier of Ontario and Hon. Prabmeet Singh Sarkaria, Minister of 
Transportation: 

Re: City of Port Colborne Resolution of Support for the Establishment of an Ontario 

Rural Road Safety Program – Ontario Good Roads Association 

Please be advised that, at its meeting of November 12, 2024 the Council of The Corporation of 
the City of Port Colborne supported the following motion received from The Ontario Good Roads 
Association: 

WHEREAS official statistics from the Government of Ontario confirm that rural roads are inherently 

more dangerous than other roads; 

AND WHEREAS, despite only having 17% of the population, 55% of the road fatalities occur on 

rural roads; 

AND WHEREAS, rural, northern, and remote municipalities are fiscally strained by maintaining 

extensive road networks on a smaller tax base; 

AND WHEREAS, preventing crashes reduces the burden on Ontario’s already strained rural 

strained health care system; 

AND WHEREAS, roadway collisions and associated lawsuits are significant factors in runaway 

municipal insurance premiums. Preventing crashes can have a significant impact in improving 

municipal risk profiles; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Port Colborne requests that the Government of 

Ontario take action to implement the rural road safety program that Good Roads has committed to 

Municipal Offices: 66 Charlotte Street   
Port Colborne, Ontario L3K 3C8 · www.portcolborne.ca 

T 905.228.8031 F 905.834.5746 
E  charlotte.madden@portcolborne.ca Legislative Services 

8.6

mailto:premier@ontario.ca
mailto:Prabmeet.Sarkaria@pc.ola.org
http://www.portcolborne.ca/
mailto:charlotte.madden@portcolborne.ca


2 

 

lead. It will allow Ontario's rural municipalities to make the critical investments needed to reduce the 

high number of people being killed and seriously injured on Ontario’s rural roads; and 

FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, Hon. Prabmeet 

Sarkaria, Minister of Transportation, Hon. King Surma, Minister of Infrastructure, Hon. Rob Flack, 

Minister of Agriculture, Hon. Lisa Thompson, Minister of Rural Affairs, Hon. Trevor Jones, Associate 

Minister of Emergency Preparedness and Response, and Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, 

and Good Roads; and 

FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to all municipalities in Ontario requesting their 

support. 

 
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Charlotte Madden 
City Clerk   
  

ec:      Hon. Kinga Surma, Minister of Infrastructure,  
Hon. Rob Flack, Minister of Agriculture,  
Hon. Lisa Thompson, Minister of Rural Affairs,  
Hon. Trevor Jones, Associate Minister of Emergency Preparedness and Response,  

     Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health,  
     Ontario Good Roads Association 
     All Ontario Municpalities 

 
 



From: Scott Butler <scott@goodroads.ca> 
Date: Tuesday, October 29, 2024 at 18:26 
To: Nicole.Rubli@portcolborne.ca <Nicole.Rubli@portcolborne.ca> 
Subject: stablishment of an Ontario Rural Road Safety Program 

Wednesday, October 09, 2024 
  
To:   City of Port Colborne Head of Council and Council Members 
  
Sent via email to: Nicole.Rubli@portcolborne.ca 
  
Subject: Establishment of an Ontario Rural Road Safety Program 
  
Too many Ontarians are being seriously injured or killed on our roads.  

In 2023, there were 616 people killed and 36,090 people injured. The number of fatalities is up 

nearly 20% in the last ten years.  

In 2021, the most recent year of complete data from MTO’s Ontario Road Safety Annual Report 

(ORSAR), there were 561 fatalities – 426 of which occurred on municipal roads. While rural 

Ontario only represents 17% of the province’s population, 55% of these deaths occurred on 

rural roads. By any measure, Ontario’s rural roads are disproportionately more dangerous. 

At the same time, municipal insurance premiums continue to increase. With no plausible reform 

being considered for joint and several liability, municipalities need to find innovative means for 

managing risk, particularly on their roadways,   

To deal with this crisis, Good Roads has designed a multifaceted rural road safety program and 

have been in discussions with the Ministry of Transportation to fund it. The program would 

target a municipality’s most dangerous roads, perform road safety audits, and install modern 

safety infrastructure that prevents serious injuries and save lives. This program is designed to be 

cost effective while also providing rural municipalities with a direct means for addressing risk 

associated with their roadways.  

Good Roads has proposed leading a five-year $183 million program that leverages our 131 years 

of municipal road expertise and our industry partnerships to quickly put in place the solutions 

that will address some of Ontario’s most dangerous roads.  

Good Roads is seeking support to address these preventable tragedies. 

If the City of Port Colborne would be interested in pursuing this, a Council resolution similar to 

the example below should be adopted and sent to the Premier and the Minister of 

Transportation: 

  

mailto:scott@goodroads.ca
mailto:Nicole.Rubli@portcolborne.ca
mailto:Nicole.Rubli@portcolborne.ca
mailto:Nicole.Rubli@portcolborne.ca


WHEREAS official statistics from the Government of Ontario confirm that rural roads are 

inherently more dangerous than other roads; 

AND WHEREAS, despite only having 17% of the population, 55% of the road fatalities 

occur on rural roads; 

AND WHEREAS, rural, northern, and remote municipalities are fiscally strained by 

maintaining extensive road networks on a smaller tax base; 

AND WHEREAS, preventing crashes reduces the burden on Ontario’s already strained 

rural strained health care system; 

AND WHEREAS, roadway collisions and associated lawsuits are significant factors in 

runaway municipal insurance premiums. Preventing crashes can have a significant 

impact in improving municipal risk profiles; 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the City of Port Colborne requests that the 

Government of Ontario take action to implement the rural road safety program that 

Good Roads has committed to lead. It will allow Ontario's rural municipalities to make 

the critical investments needed to reduce the high number of people being killed and 

seriously injured on Ontario’s rural roads; and 

FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, Hon. 

Prabmeet Sarkaria, Minister of Transportation, Hon. King Surma, Minister of 

Infrastructure, Hon. Rob Flack, Minister of Agriculture, Hon. Lisa Thompson, Minister of 

Rural Affairs, Hon. Trevor Jones, Associate Minister of Emergency Preparedness and 

Response, and Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and Good Roads; and 

FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to all municipalities in Ontario requesting 

their support. 

If you have any questions regarding this initiative please contact Thomas Barakat, Good 

Roads’ Manager of Public Policy & Government Relations, at thomas@goodroads.ca at 

your convenience. 

Sincerely, 

   
 Scott R. Butler 
Executive Director 
  

 
  
Antoine Boucher 
President 
Good Roads Board of Directors 
  

  

  

 

mailto:thomas@goodroads.ca


 

 

106 Earl Thompson Road, 3rd Floor 

PO Box 1060 

Ayr, ON  N0B 1E0 

 
November 19, 2024 
 
Sent via Email 
 
RE: Resolution – Good Roads re: Ontario Rural Safety Program  
 
Please be advised, at the Council Meeting held on November 12, 2024, the Township of North 
Dumfries Council adopted the following resolution: 
 

“WHEREAS official statistics from the Government of Ontario confirm that rural roads are 
inherently more dangerous than other roads; 
 
AND WHEREAS, despite only having 17% of the population, 55% of the road fatalities 
occur on rural roads; 
 
AND WHEREAS, rural, northern, and remote municipalities are fiscally strained by 
maintaining extensive road networks on a smaller tax base; 
 
AND WHEREAS, preventing crashes reduces the burden on Ontario’s already strained 
rural strained health care system; 
 
AND WHEREAS, roadway collisions and associated lawsuits are significant factors in 
runaway municipal insurance premiums. Preventing crashes can have a significant 
impact in improving municipal risk profiles; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Township of North Dumfries requests that 
the Government of Ontario take action to implement the rural road safety program that 
Good Roads has committed to lead. It will allow Ontario's rural municipalities to make the 
critical investments needed to reduce the high number of people being killed and 
seriously injured on Ontario’s rural roads; and 
 
FURTHER THAT a copy of this resolution be forwarded to Premier Doug Ford, Hon. 
Prabmeet Sarkaria, Minister of Transportation, Hon. King Surma, Minister of 
Infrastructure, Hon. Rob Flack, Minister of Agriculture, Hon. Lisa Thompson, Minister of 
Rural Affairs, Hon. Trevor Jones, Associate Minister of Emergency Preparedness and 
Response, and Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and Good Roads; and 
 
FURTHER THAT this resolution be circulated to all municipalities in Ontario requesting 
their support.” 

 
 
 



 
 
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions, or concerns. 
 
 
Sincerely,  
 
 
Ashley Good, Clerk  
Township of North Dumfries  
519-632-8800 ext. 122 
agood@northdumfries.ca  
 
  
 
 
cc. Premier Doug Ford, Hon. Prabmeet Sarkaria, Minister of Transportation, Hon. King Surma, 
Minister of Infrastructure, Hon. Rob Flack, Minister of Agriculture, Hon. Lisa Thompson, Minister 
of Rural Affairs, Hon. Trevor Jones, Associate Minister of Emergency Preparedness and 
Response, and Hon. Sylvia Jones, Minister of Health, and Good Roads; and all municipalities in 
Ontario 
 

mailto:agood@northdumfries.ca


From: Councillor Mick
To: Amy Leclerc
Subject: Re: Agenda Item Request
Date: Tuesday, November 19, 2024 10:11:22 AM
Attachments: image003.png

image004.png

Hello Amy, 

Could you put my show poster in the correspondence?  

The show is about a man who listens to old records to cheer himself up and then the records come to life in his apartment, simular to
Jimangi.  It's really funny and I play a butler. 

The show times are: 

Nov 28 -7pm
Nov 30 - 1pm & 7pm
Dec 01 - 7pm 

I'd love to see some familiar faces in the audience! 

Loren

On Nov 18, 2024 10:24, Amy Leclerc <clerk@mattawa.ca> wrote:
Good day everyone,

If anyone has any items they would like on the regular meeting agenda for Monday November 25, 2024 please let us know as
soon as possible.  Please include Melody on your reply as well as I will be away on holidays beginning November 21, 2024 and
she will be assisting with the agenda implementation.

I am away on a conference as well on Wednesday this week so if you have any questions, please reach out either today or
tomorrow.

Thank you.

Amy Leclerc
Municipal Clerk
Revenue Services
Clerk
P: 705-744-5611
ext 102
E:
clerk@mattawa.ca

Town
of Mattawa
160 Water Street,
Mattawa, ON P0H 1V0
www.mattawa.ca  

HOLIDAY ALERT:  I will be on holidays from November 21, 2024 returning December 2, 2024.  I will not have access to my
emails during this time.

This message is intended for the individual to whom it is addressed and may contain information that is confidential and
exempt from disclosure under the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.  If you are not the intended
recipient, please do not forward, copy or disclose this message to anyone and delete all copies and attachments received.  If
you have received this communication in error, please notify the sender immediately.

8.7

mailto:councillor.mick@mattawa.ca
mailto:clerk@mattawa.ca
mailto:clerk@mattawa.ca
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.mattawa.ca%2F&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C79f730c803df4123ed8508dd08ac6c27%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638676258821886928%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=Qm4NtoalcFgsGQWX1f15%2BO0mUnjA4m9xnsrnfrfqfiA%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.facebook.com%2FMattawatownhall&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C79f730c803df4123ed8508dd08ac6c27%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638676258821907736%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=AvaGez7gIVX1rgwb2cIioiABSyhWpvkaAPW6BIP6b%2B0%3D&reserved=0
https://can01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=http%3A%2F%2Fwww.youtube.com%2F%40townofmattawa1508&data=05%7C02%7Cclerk%40mattawa.ca%7C79f730c803df4123ed8508dd08ac6c27%7Cafd28fdb21ff48e18dd7fea28867d4d6%7C0%7C0%7C638676258821922374%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJFbXB0eU1hcGkiOnRydWUsIlYiOiIwLjAuMDAwMCIsIlAiOiJXaW4zMiIsIkFOIjoiTWFpbCIsIldUIjoyfQ%3D%3D%7C0%7C%7C%7C&sdata=JjjxXEtXW%2FAN8SUSX76IbyHuJw7k7HA27IIqWe1jEFg%3D&reserved=0






10.1 
INFORMATION REPORT 

 
PREPARED FOR: MEMBERS OF COUNCIL   
    
PREPARED BY: MAYOR RAYMOND A. BÉLANGER 
 
TITLE: PHYSICIAN RECRUITMENT REPORT 
 
DATE:  MONDAY, NOVEMBER 25, 2024  
 
REPORT NO:  24-63R 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Physician Recruitment Committee consists of appointed Members from Councils of the 
Town of Mattawa (Raymond Bélanger), Townships of Bonfield (Narry Paquette) and Papineau-
Cameron (Mélanie Chenier) and the Municipalities of Calvin (Richard Gould) and Mattawan 
(Janet McNabb). 
 
Other members of the committee consist of Dr. Bryan Williams (Chief of Staff), Tanya Bélanger 
(President & CEO), Amy Morrison (VP Corporate Services & CFO/Administrator), Christine 
Thompson (VP Clinical Services/CNO), Kayla Michaud (Physician Recruiter) and Lisa Michaud 
(Recorder). 
 
ANALYSIS & DISCUSSION 
 
Kayla Michaud (Physician Recruiter) reported on the following: 

• The team is working on recruitment daily. We had a physician stop into the Family Health 
Centre and asked to speak with someone about working in Mattawa. Dr Redhead met 
with him, he is from New Liskeard; a meeting will be held with this physician and our 
local physician group. 

• The EDLP program has proven effective at filling the gaps in our Emergency Department 
on-call schedule. 

• The committee discussed that there are two pockets of funding, the Covid Surge funding 
ended on March 31st, 2024. We were hopeful that the temporary summer locum funding 
would continue past March 31st, 20224, the OHA recently surveyed small hospitals on 
the impact it would have if funding was cancelled. 

• We received two offers from community members for the rental of their homes to utilize 
for physician accommodation. Last summer we did have a few incidents of needing to 
find accommodation when no vacancies were available or when a physician was 
bringing their family and was looking for a home to stay in.  

• The committee agreed that this would primarily be needed in the summer when one of 
the rentals is not available so that offer and the need for an agreement was not needed 
at this time. 

• The other rental was offered to one physician who served in August for 5 days and 
refused it preferring to stay in the on-call room at the hospital.   
 

 



Dr Williams (Chief of Staff) reported on the following: 
• Dr Williams shared that we are very fortunate with the group of locums we have but 

scheduling is still precarious so we must keep a close eye on it. 
• The physicians who have signed return of service agreements are expected to start work 

in 2026.  Taylor Wilkins could be in 2025 if she chooses not to complete a third-year 
residency.  

• The CEO will look at scheduling a dinner with the three physicians and our current 
medical staff. 

• The CEO had a meeting with Vic Fedeli on May 3rd, 2024. 
 
Crystal Burns shared the northern incentive initiatives and job opportunities are shared with 
medical students. She will ensure Mattawa is included in the job opportunities that are circulated 
twice a year. 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Monday, March 13th, 2023, Regular Meeting of Council – Resolution Page 66 
 
Moved by Councillor Thibert 
Seconded by Councillor Ross 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa approve a five-
year annual financial commitment of $13,769.54 per year for the Mattawa Physician 
Recruitment Initiative. 
 
AND FURTHER THAT the annual contribution will begin in 2024 until the final payment in 2028 
payable in January of each year. 
 
The physician recruitment budget was shared with the committee. There were no concerns to 
report. Copy attached with report. 
 
 
 
 
RELEVANT POLICY/LEGISLATION 
 

None 
 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS/RESOLUTION 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council of the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa receives Report # 
24-63R titled Physician Recruitment Report. 
 
 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Town of Mattawa receives Report # 24-63R titled 
Physician Recruitment Report. 
 
 



af'zlo'L ' zb'z,tg'L 00 009

ppguog wo4 stuawied dfi q3p3 oJ anp a3ueue\,

a3uelPE punJ a^rlelntun3
asuPleg punJ 6u!uado

sa^llu a?u I atolaq sasuadxS
slsoS JalrnJcau

(r1e'uorgepoLuocce';anet1) sa^rluaoul uercrsr(q6
(s:ea[ g ]sJU sr.l]uor,r 7) acedg ocl]J6 uorlualag uercrs,{q6

sasuadx3 0ullalleN/suorieynull6urs!Ua^pV
sr{errleanrg

srel lu0l,!lrnJcau Jaqlo/salysla^run 1e s{e6 3ruapecv
pualaaM [er*y1ag lueprsauisltsln a]lS uerastrq6

SEgE-adE

?9'800'09 6Z'7,t6'99

z9'169'9ZL Z9't6?'tzt

00'000'00r 00'000'00tso^lluaeul 6u1u61g

s['gtz'z s ff'286'6 6r8tazt
80'619'i.

6S 6!S'i

r /'aon'c

re '080'e
61"'8: L'9

00 000'9

00'008'? $ 99'66r'8' s 99'669'0r S

. 00 008'? - 99'66r'9t 99'669'it

aoueuen lenl3v 1a6png

sarirledrsrunpl;Tsdrqsuraol uroJJ anua^oU
m6'lifrqim55TuEl

lfior{ eM$unN

Nm0N0clv
q3esJl{vsroNoelvrt

€l0Z'lt,.raquacag 1e - uosl.leduo3 la6png

9Nu33W ISII|1 thtof,
lNlWilnUStU NVtf,tSAHd

TUI,U88lr

BnnsllsS$
ffitrllviueu

90'9e0'/ 88'g8r't9 - [z'6rs'89 -(ttcgaO) I snldrng 1a1,,t



o 3
>

o Ja
.

G
r !o a<

6 I o o f

!"
r3

ir3
9=

<
r=

5
?!

:f!
i

li 
<

 
ic

 
<

 
=

-<
V

-*
a

--
rl=

:-
I=

-
O

ot
?o

O

oo
uS

;i
=

jr=
ro

 €
'

I$
 N

 .
l$

 -
G

' 
l.)

N
O

hr
O

rJ
O

C
)o

r 
ir'

o 
i, 

b

o@
a&

a

N
 I

! 
-!

'! 
_u

 N
N

O
U

!O
-r

O
6O

!O
O

Lt
C

aa
@

@
a,

aA
A

#c
t

N
N

IS
bN

i$
'o

 -o
 \ 

-o
iiC

C
lO

po
-9

pP
!a

oL
rc

oN
O

S
C

N o { 6 N o @ t, N o @ N o N o N o N o N N N N o N N a N e N o N s

0<
,r

6a
fia

ls
 1

u 
j-r

. 
-a

 N
N

O
b!

O
rr

ac
o

90
:-

P
!r

P
!O

O
LA

O
af

N
o5

0

06
66

6

J\
)P

i'*
-o

N
N

C
IS

nO
JJ

O
C

O
o.

.O
(5

C
(:

N
ol

o

aa
ul

(r
ru

j$
 J

'r 
,:\

 -
G

 J
')

N
O

O
!O

lir
-o

Lr
b

O
N

O
}O

oA
A

A
,A

a ! g, Lr

o O O O

o O P

N
N 9D

-
!Q

T
V

ttd
S

(lH

E
n 

rE
llE

ut
u

€r
o.

tv
lrd

Q
H

Iio
-o

n>
(l)

>
?

-:
6=

lA
=

'O
7

=
6 

<
 

<
 

<
 

: 
! 

<
tE

.x
;5

9d
:

-o
 

I 
a 

@
 

I 
i.

+
- 

t 
: 

. 
€ 

6 
=

A
O

 
=

 
rQ

 
@

 
- 

ra
5q

:a
=

 
Y

:
?:

:lb
=

jQ
a

!'<
F

E
gs

.
I 

A
5o

 
-;

i
i 

=
O

V
 

tn
al

=
?S

o
: 

=
ii?

 
;a

:iL
.^

F
=

.O e 
?a

 
o:

'
i 

*i
 

! 
>

f 
:s

 
,i

=
Y

6 
?<

:=
o!

<
-=

b;
<

i=
 

:+
Jo

O
o !; e

aQ
a&

 
a o $ a o N O

a @ !! -o
'o

A
.h

$,
A

9r oo (o
o

J.
'

O
(' :i !N

a

ol 'q
l

{T (J
l

cr
)

qr ta -o
l

o0 *,
1 h

&
e&

0 fs

O
O

 
-

;'^
. ;

^

I 
^ 

:.
oo

 
I

.u
.n

 <
u

C --
-o

 -
u

O
()

 
O

O
g'

l 
cD

ao
o

O
- 

J

9N
lr]

lw
 ]

ru
.tr

ul
 tO

f,
tN

3w
ffn

uf
,3

u 
N

V
tf,

IS
A

H
d

rH
0r

{s
H

su
$r

M
n0

N
0c

lv
<

3<
]s

li{
Y

sr
or

,to
st

vf
f



10.2 
INFORMATION REPORT 

 
PREPARED FOR: MAYOR BELANGER AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL   
    
PREPARED BY: PAUL LAPERRIERE INTERIM CAO/TREASURER  
 

TITLE: UPDATES FROM TOWN HALL 
 
DATE:  MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024  
 
REPORT NO:  24-64R 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This is a periodic update for Council. 
 
 
 
ANALYSIS & DISCUSSION 
 
Staffing: 
 

i) A Public Works Employee resigned.  Matthew Shotter’s last available workday will be 
November 24, 2024.  We wish Matthew well. We will be internally posting for his 
replacement in the very near future. 
 

ii) Wayne Chaput, our CBO, has returned from his leave and is back at work. 

iii) Parks & Recreation Supervisor posting has gone out and closes November 29, 2024. 

 
Dorion Road: 
 
Our major construction project, Dorion Road, has now come to an end for the season.  Our final 
walkthrough for this season will occur this Wednesday, November 27, 2024. 
 
The project will resume in late spring of 2025 with substantial completion set for October 15, 
2025. 
 
Christmas Party: 
 
Our Christmas party is less than 2 weeks away.  It is being held on December 5, 2024, and we 
hope to see you all there. 
 
Annie’s Park: 
 
During a recent microburst windstorm, a tree fell on our gazebo at Annie’s Park, destroying it 
in the process.  We will be replacing it. 
 
 
 
 
 



Voyageur Days 2025: 
 
Entertainment was switched around this year, first by bringing back the 3-night performance.  
This year, Rock takes centre stage on Friday night with a 4-show performance. Saturday night 
will feature 4 country bands including major Canadian artists. Sunday will close out the festival 
with 3 fantastic classic rock tribute bands which will lead into a fabulous fireworks display. 
 
We have begun announcing our line-up for 2025 and tickets are available for sale.  We are 
experiencing modest sale activity which we expect to respond to our announcement of our 
headliner acts. 
 
We’ve changed our ticket pricing strategy to include day pricing as per popular demand. 
 
Early bird ticket price is $69 for either Friday or Saturday night and $49 for Sunday night.  All 
weekend early bird prices are $89. Children 14 and under are $10 for any day and $35 for the 
weekend. 
 
Holiday Schedule: 
 
We plan to close the office over the Holiday Season from the afternoon of Christmas Eve up to 
and including January 3, 2025. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
None at this time. 
 
 
 
RELEVANT POLICY/LEGISLATION 
 
None.  
 
ATTACHMENT 
 
None. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS/RESOLUTION 
 
It is recommended that Council for the Town of Mattawa receives and accepts this report. 
 
 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Town of Mattawa receives Report # 24-64R titled 
Updates from Town Hall. 
 



10.3 
INFORMATION REPORT 

 
 
PREPARED FOR: MAYOR BÉLANGER AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL   
    
PREPARED BY: WAYNE CHAPUT, BY-LAW ENFORCEMENT OFFICER/CBO 
 
TITLE: FENCING AT 640 BRYDGES STREET 
 
DATE:  NOVEMBER 25, 2024  
 
REPORT NO:  24-65R 
 
 
 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
This has been an ongoing issue since the summer.  
 

 
ANALYSIS & DISCUSSION 
 
Requests from homeowners to increase heights of fences have been applied for and granted 

by Council in the past for similar reasons. After discussions with staff and Council the fence 

does not interfere with the sightlines, visibility or with traffic or pedestrians. 

 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
Penalties of bylaw contraventions are not sought at this time. 
 
 
RELEVANT POLICY/LEGISLATION 
 
Bylaw #17-15 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
 
None 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
 
It is recommended that Council receives this report and that Council approves the request by 

the homeowners of 640 Brydges Street to leave the lattice on the Brydges Street (front yard) 



side of the fence. Furthermore, it is recommended that if the homeowners sell the property, that 

the fence be brought back to the height no more than 4’ high in accordance with Bylaw #17-15.  

 

 

 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Town of Mattawa receives Report # 24-65R titled 
Fencing at 640 Brydges Street. 
 
 
 
 
 



10.4 
INFORMATION REPORT 

 
PREPARED FOR: MAYOR BELANGER AND MEMBERS OF COUNCIL   
    
PREPARED BY: DEXTURE SARRAZIN, DIRECTOR OF COMMUNITY SERVICES  
 

TITLE: REPLACEMENT OF 2012 FORD F-150 
 
DATE:  MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024  
 
REPORT NO:  24-66R 
 
 
BACKGROUND 
 
The Town of Mattawa in recent years has not had a consistent approach to the replacement of 
rolling stock and non-core assets in general. This lack of consistency often leads to surprises 
and the result is often unexpected expenses. Now, we currently have a 2012 Ford F-150 in the 
Public Works Department that is due for replacement as identified in our asset management 
plan. 
 
 
ANALYSIS & DISCUSSION 
 
 
The 2012 Ford F-150 that the Public Works Supervisor currently drives is creeping up in 
mileage and has approximately 175,000km, is 13 years old, and far beyond its serviceable life. 
It also jumps out of gear at random, has a rusted through body, air conditioning that doesn’t 
work, 4-wheel drive that does not function, and would not pass a safety inspection. 
 
The Winter tires currently installed on the 2012 are new and will be reused. 
 
A back rack, radio, and necessary decals and safety equipment will be completed by the 
appropriate contractor. 
 
The 2012 Ford will be declared surplus. 
 
Our 2 x 2019 Ford F-150's are now paid and the payments for these trucks are now complete. 
 
 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
 
Quoted Truck - 2024 Ford F-150 XL Super Crew 4x4 White 2.7L V6 
 
Quote 1 – Cambrian Ford - $69,615 plus HST & Licensing 
 
Quote 2 – Stockfish Ford – Model N/A 
 
Quote 3 – Yonge & Steeles Ford - $57,910 (2x4, Extended Cab) 
 
Quote 4 – Downtown Ford Toronto - $49,999 plus HST & Licensing 



 
 
RELEVANT POLICY/LEGISLATION 
 
Non-core asset management plan, Procurement Policy, Disposition of Assets Policy 
 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS/RESOLUTION 
 
Be it resolved that council of the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa accept this report and 
provide direction to the CAO to purchase a 2024 Ford F-150 XL 4x4 SuperCrew White 2.7L V6 
truck in the amount of $49,999.00 plus HST & Licensing, over 60 months at 4.99% financing. 
And further be it resolved that council of the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa declare the 
2012 Ford F-150 XLT surplus and be disposed of in alignment with our disposition of assets 
policy. 
 
 
 
BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Town of Mattawa receives Report # 24-66R titled 
Replacement of 2012 Ford F-150. 
 



..............................................................................................................

NEW MOTOR VEHICLE PURCHASE AGREEMENT
HST# R817439607 | DEALER REG# 5427745 | DESKIT CUST#

17636384 | DMS CUST# 58389

4255960
/21893
DEAL#

240969
STOCK#

77 East Don Roadway, Toronto, ON, M4M 2A5, Tel:416-603-9156 Fax:416-603-0990
F&I Manager: 

BUYER
TOWN OF MATTAWA
160 WATER STREET P.O. BOX
390
MATTAWA ON P0H 1V0
director@mattawa.ca

LIC.

DATE OF SALE
Nov 21 2024
INSURANCE

POLICY NO.

EXP. DATE

YEAR
2024

TYPE
New

MAKE
Ford

MODEL
F-150

TRIM
XL 4WD SuperCrew 5.5' Box

BODYTYPE
Crew Cab Pickup - Short Bed

PKG
101A

MFR MODE CODE
W1L

EXT. COLOR
OXFORD WHT

INT. COLOR
BLK W/MED DK SLATE CLTH 4

VIN
1FTEW1LP7RKD47281

IN SERVICE DATE
Sep 30 2024

MAX DIST. TRAV.
1315 km

DELIVERY DATE

I, the purchaser, TOWN OF MATTAWA, agree to purchase the following vehicle from you, the dealer, on the terms set out in this
agreement including the vehicle information document which forms part of this agreement. INITIALS

This vehicle to be acquired for registration in Canada only.
I acknowledge having read all the terms of the contract, including the
pages that make up this contract. I understand these terms make up
the entire contract.

VEHICLE AND OPTIONS
Basic MSRP $62,180.00
Oxford White, Dark Slate Cloth 40/20/40, 50 State Emissions, Gf,
E: 2.7l V6 Ecoboost, Trans: Elec 10-Spd Auto

$0.00

Destination $2,395.00
Air Tax $100.00
Total MSRP $64,675.00
Retail Price $64,675.00
Delivery Allowance -$8,000.00
Adjustment -$6,676.00
PRICE INFORMATION
Total Vehicle Price $49,999.00
OMVIC $12.50
Subtotal $50,011.50
HST 13% $6,501.50
Subtotal $56,513.00
Fuel/E-Charge $50.00
Subtotal $50.00
Total $56,563.00
PPSA $48.19
AMOUNT FINANCED TOTAL $56,611.19

This vehicle to be acquired for registration in Canada only.
I acknowledge having read all the terms of the contract, including the pages that
make up this contract. I understand these terms make up the entire contract.

Privacy Statement: By signing this contract you consent to the
dealer contacting you in the future to the sharing of information
with associated businesses so that they may provide you with
timely information about their services. You may withdraw your
consent in writing at any time.

INITIALS

Incentive: The dealership receives a fee from the institution
that is providing my financing. INITIALS

Financing Information: I confirm that the financial institution
providing financing for the purchase of this vehicle has provided me
with the initial disclosure statement regarding financial information as
required under the Consumer Protection Act, 2002.
I have received the vehicle information required
under the Motor Vehicle Dealers Act, 2002. INITIALS

Service Plan: This vehicle was sold with a service plan? YES / NO

REMARKS
ALL DISCOUNTS AND REBATES HAVE BEEN UTILIZED AND
APPLIED. OFFER VALID THROUGH NOV 30, 2024. VEHICLE MUST
BE DELIVERED BY NOV 30, 2024 TO QUALIFY.
FINANCE TERMS
Finance Company Ford Credit of Canada
1st Payment Date Dec 21 2024
Amortization 60
APR 4.99 %
Payment Frequency Monthly
Payments 60
Payment Amount $1,068.06
Cost of Borrowing $7,472.41
Total Payment $64,083.60
DUE ON DELIVERY
License $64.00
D.O.D Credit $0.00
TOTAL D.O.D $64.00

TOWN OF MATTAWA Signature

Signature 
Authorize Rep #

MARCO MOSTARDA 
Prov License 5525522

01-FC-N March2017

2281610 ONTARIO INC O/A DOWNTOWN FORD/LINCOLN | Tel:416-603-9156 | Fax:416-603-0990 
| 77 East Don Roadway, Toronto, ON M4M 2A5

11/21/2024 1:36:45 PM Page 1 of 5



Contract for Sale of a New Vehicle

Important Information Respecting Motor Vehicle Sales
In case of any concerns with this sale, you should first contact your motor vehicle dealer. If concerns persist, you may
contact the Ontario Motor Vehicle Industry Council as the administrative authority designated for administering the
Motor Vehicle Dealers Act, 2002.
You may be eligible for compensation from the Motor Vehicle Dealers Compensation Fund if you suffer a financial loss
from this trade and if your dealer is unable or unwilling to make good on the loss.
You may have additional rights at law.
Telephone: 416-226-4500 or 1-800-943-6002

Web site: www.omvic.on.ca

Canadian Motor Vehicle Arbitration Plan

The Canadian Motor Vehicle Arbitration Plan may be available to resolve disputes concerning alleged manufacturer’s
defects or implementation of the manufacturer’s new motor vehicle warranty.

Canadian Motor Vehicle Arbitration Plan Not Available

The manufacturer of this vehicle is not a participant in the Canadian Motor Vehicle Arbitration Plan. Therefore, the
program under that Plan is not available to resolve disputes concerning alleged manufacturer's defects or
implementation of the manufacturer's new motor vehicle warranty.
CAMVAP is only available if the model year of the motor vehicle is the current model year or one of the four preceding
years and the vehicle has been driven less than 160,000 kms.
Tel: 1-800-207-0685
Web: www.camvap.ca

Vehicle Sold "AS-IS"
The motor vehicle sold under this contract is being sold "as-is" and is not represented as being in road worthy
condition, mechanically sound or maintained at any guaranteed level of quality. The vehicle may not be fit for use as a
means of transportation and may require substantial repairs at the purchaser's expense. It may not be possible to
register the vehicle to be driven in its current condition. INIT. __________ DATE:__________

Safety Standards Certificate
A safety certificate is only an indication that the motor vehicle met certain basic standards of vehicle safety on the date
of inspection.

01-FC-N March2017

2281610 ONTARIO INC O/A DOWNTOWN FORD/LINCOLN | Tel:416-603-9156 | Fax:416-603-0990 
| 77 East Don Roadway, Toronto, ON M4M 2A5

11/21/2024 1:36:45 PM Page 2 of 5



VIN: 1FTEW1LP7RKD47281DISCLOSURES OF NEW MOTOR VEHICLE PURCHASE
The dealer declares the following statements are true to the best of their knowledge and belief.

The Vehicle is new, and the maximum distance that will be shown on the Vehicle’s odometer when it is delivered is 
The Vehicle is new, and the contract does not specify the maximum distance that will be shown on the Vehicle’s odometer when it is
delivered.
The Vehicle’s odometer in  .
The odometer of the Motor Vehicle accurately records the true distance traveled.

Signature

01-FC-N March2017

2281610 ONTARIO INC O/A DOWNTOWN FORD/LINCOLN | Tel:416-603-9156 | Fax:416-603-0990 
| 77 East Don Roadway, Toronto, ON M4M 2A5

11/21/2024 1:36:45 PM Page 3 of 5



TERMS AND CONDITIONS
1. PRIVACY NOTICE

The personal information collected on this form and on other documents relat ing to this transact ion is collected in accordance w ith applicable privacy legislat ion and
is governed by the Dealer’s privacy policy. Such information is collected and used by the Dealer for and is necessary to: (i) sell or lease the Vehicle; (ii) provide
products and services related to the Vehicle; (iii) assist the Buyer in the financing or lease of the Vehicle; (iv) provide service or repair the Vehicle; and/or (v)
provide other information, products and services. 
The Dealer may disclose the personal information collected to the Dealer’s parent organizat ion, if applicable, to enable the parent organizat ion to: (i) administer the
transact ion; (ii) provide services such as warrant ies and extended service plans; (iii) administer customer not ificat ion programs; and/or provide the Buyer w ith other
information, products and services. 
Subject to the Buyer’s consent to receiving updates and information unrelated to this transact ion w ith the Dealer, by signing this Agreement, you consent to the
collect ion, use and disclosure of your personal information for the foregoing purposes. 
Contact the Dealer to obtain a copy of the Dealer’s privacy policy, including information on how to access or request the correct ion of your personal information, or
to ask a quest ion about the collect ion, use and disclosure of your personal information. 

2. Definition of the Vehicle
The Vehicle as described in this Agreement includes all accessories and addit ional equipment attached or installed on the Vehicle before or after the date of this
Agreement. It  furthermore includes any proceeds arising from any dealings in the Vehicle, including but not limited to all forms of personal property.

3. Pollution Equipment
Dealer and Buyer w ill ensure in the case of a Trade-In, that all the original pollut ion control equipment on the Trade-In cert ified under the Motor Vehicle Safety Act
of Canada is intact and operat ional at the t ime of delivery.

4. Distance Travelled
The Dealer confirms that to the best of the Dealer's knowledge, the distance travelled by the Vehicle as shown on the face of this Agreement w ill be the
odometer reading on the day the Vehicle is delivered to the Buyer. In the case of a trade-in vehicle, the Buyer confirms that to the best of the Buyer's knowledge
the distance travelled by the trade-in vehicle is as shown on the face of this Agreement, and the Buyer acknowledges that the Dealer is relying on the accuracy of
same and agrees to indemnify the Dealer and hold the Dealer harmless from any losses, damages or other expenses caused by any inaccuracy or incorrect
representat ion of same.

5. Title
The right and t it le to the Vehicle shall remain in the Dealer unt il the unpaid cash balance stated on the face of this Agreement is paid in full. The Buyer w ill not at
any t ime suffer or permit any charge, lien or encumbrance to be taken in or against the Vehicle unt il the unpaid cash balance stated on the face of this Agreement
is paid in full. The Dealer reserves the right to repossess and to resell the Vehicle upon default  of payment of the unpaid cash balance. The right and t it le of the
Vehicle shall remain in the Dealer unt il all other sums ow ing by the Buyer to the Dealer according to these terms and condit ions are paid in full to the Dealer.

6. Acceptance of Delivery
If Buyer refuses to take delivery of the Vehicle when it  is made available to Buyer, or on the delivery date specified in this Agreement, the Dealer shall not ify Buyer,
by registered mail, sent to Buyer’s last address known to the Dealer, that the Vehicle is available for delivery. If Buyer fails to take delivery of the Vehicle w ithin
seven (7) days of signed receipt of this not ice, or if the not ice is returned to the Dealer unclaimed, the Dealer may resell the Vehicle w ith no further not ice to
Buyer. When the Dealer resells the Vehicle, Buyer agrees to pay the Dealer for all losses the Dealer incurs. Any deposit/down payment or vehicle Trade-In may be
kept by the Dealer to apply against any loss suffered by the Dealer. If the loss is greater than the total amount paid as a deposit/down payment and the value of
the Trade-In, Buyer agrees to pay the difference to the Dealer. The Dealer agrees to provide Buyer w ith a detailed accounting of the resale and a list  of expenses
incurred. The Dealer shall maintain the right to use any legal means available to collect any sum owing by Buyer under the Agreement.

7. Date of Delivery by Dealer
If the Dealer is unable to deliver the Vehicle w ithin 120 days of the date of this Agreement for any reason through no fault  of the Dealer, the Dealer w ill forthw ith
not ify the Buyer on expirat ion of the 120 day period of the reason for the delay and this Agreement may be extended w ithin 5 days of this not ificat ion by mutual
consent of the part ies evidenced in writ ing. If this five (5) day period has expired, this Agreement may be cancelled by either party by giving written not ice of
cancellat ion to the other party. Where this Agreement is so cancelled:
a. the Dealer w ill return any part ial payment or deposit;
b. the Dealer w ill return any trade-in vehicle accepted by the dealer or if such vehicle has been sold, the Dealer w ill pay the Buyer the allowance for a trade-in
vehicle or the value of a vehicle accepted as part payment as indicated in this Agreement.
c. the Dealer’s compliance w ith the requirements in subclauses (a) and (b) above w ill be a full release of any claims that the Buyer may have or claim to have
against the Buyer result ing from such non-delivery, w ithout any further or other releases from the Buyer.

8. Trade-In Vehicles
If Buyer is trading in a vehicle, Buyer represents to the Dealer that to the best of Buyer’s knowledge the information in the Addit ional Trade-in Addendum and
Vehicle Condit ion Report for the trade-in vehicle is true and correct as of the date hereof and w ill be true and correct when the trade-in vehicle is delivered to the
Dealer. Buyer acknowledges that the Dealer is relying on the accuracy of Buyer’s disclosure in the Addit ional Trade-in Addendum and Vehicle Condit ion Report and
Buyer shall indemnify and hold the Dealer harmless from any losses, damages or other expenses caused by any incorrect statement or representat ion in this
agreement, the Addit ional Trade-in Addendum, and the Vehicle Condit ion Report for the trade-in vehicle. Except as indicated on page 1 of this Agreement, Buyer
w ill transfer the trade-in vehicle to the Dealer free and clear of all liens and encumbrances.

At the t ime of the transfer of the trade-in vehicle to the Dealer, the trade-in vehicle w ill be equipped and in the same condit ion, except for reasonable wear and
tear, as it  is on the date of this Agreement. If the trade-in vehicle is not in the same condit ion, Buyer shall pay the Dealer for all necessary repairs or agree to
reduce the trade-in allowance by the cost of the repairs. If arrangements cannot be made which are sat isfactory to both the Dealer and the Buyer for the
payment of any necessary repairs to the trade-in vehicle, the Dealer may, at its opt ion, cancel this Agreement and the Dealer w ill be ent it led to deduct its
damages from Buyer’s deposit/down payment. If Buyer transfers the trade-in vehicle to the Dealer prior to the Vehicle being delivered to Buyer, the agreed value
of the trade-in vehicle w ill form part of Buyer’s deposit/down payment. The Buyer agrees to transfer t it le of the trade-in vehicle (if any) at such t ime and to such
person as the Dealer shall specify, free and clear of all liens (other than as disclosed on the face of this Agreement).

9. Financing And Payment
The Buyer acknowledges that this Agreement is an agreement to purchase the Vehicle. If there is an unpaid balance, the Dealer's obligat ion to sell the Buyer the
Vehicle is condit ional upon financing for the unpaid balance. The Buyer w ill have two business days from the date of this Agreement to obtain such financing. If
financing is to be provided to the Buyer, the Dealer represents to the Buyer that the lender has complied w ith the Consumer Protect ion Act of Ontario, as
amended, by providing the Buyer w ith the information that must be disclosed in any init ial disclosure statement w ith respect to the financing. 

The Buyer consents to a credit  invest igat ion and the exchange of credit  information concerning the Buyer's personal credit  history. The Buyer agrees that the
Dealer may register a financing statement confirming the Dealer's interest in the Vehicle to the extent that any such interest exists. The Dealer may register any
financing or financing change statement made hereunder for a period up to the term of this Agreement plus one year. Where the law permits, the Buyer waives
the Buyer's rights to sign or receive a copy of any financing, financing change or verificat ion or confirmation statement in connect ion w ith this Agreement. The
Buyer agrees that copies of any documents which are required to be sent to the Buyer pursuant to the Personal Property Security laws of Ontario may be sent by
ordinary mail.

10. Inconsistent terms
In the event that any of the terms and condit ions of this Agreement are inconsistent w ith the terms and condit ions of any Condit ional Sale Agreement between
Buyer and Dealer, the terms of such Condit ional Sale Agreement shall control.

11. Payment Failure
If the Buyer pays the Dealer w ith a cheque that is dishonored or unpaid for any reason, the Dealer may, at the Dealer's sole opt ion, declare this Agreement null
and void and retake the Vehicle, or make claims against the Buyer on the cheque. In addit ion, to the extent permitted by law, the Dealer w ill charge the Buyer a
$24.00 returned cheque charge. 
If any form of payment for any whole or part ial amount due under this Agreement is dishonored, refused or misrepresented, then such payment w ill be deemed to
be unpaid, and the Dealer may, at the Dealer's sole opt ion, declare this Agreement null and void and retake the Vehicle. The Buyer w ill immediately reimburse the
Dealer for all costs, charges and expenses incurred by the Dealer that arise out of such refusal, dishonour or misrepresentat ion including but not limited to all costs
of taking possession, any reasonable cost of repairs, parts, lien payouts, handling and storage expenses, a reasonable selling commission and legal costs.

01-FC-N March2017

2281610 ONTARIO INC O/A DOWNTOWN FORD/LINCOLN | Tel:416-603-9156 | Fax:416-603-0990 
| 77 East Don Roadway, Toronto, ON M4M 2A5

11/21/2024 1:36:45 PM Page 4 of 5



TERMS AND CONDITIONS (CONTINUED)
12. Cancellation

If for any reason Buyer and Dealer do not complete the Vehicle sale and purchase, financing is not obtained, or this Agreement is declared void, Buyer w ill return
the Vehicle to the Dealer and Buyer w ill pay forthw ith to the Dealer on demand all reasonable costs, charges, and expenses. 
In the event this Agreement is cancelled by mutual consent, the Dealer shall return the deposit/down payment, if any, and the vehicle given as a trade-in, to
Buyer and such return shall operate as a full release of all claims which Buyer may have against the Dealer. Where the vehicle given as a trade has been sold by the
Dealer, Buyer, on cancellat ion shall be ent it led to recover only the amount set out in this Agreement as a trade-in allowance.

13. WARRANTIES
ALL WARRANTIES, IF ANY, BY A MANUFACTURER OR SUPPLIER OTHER THAN THE DEALER ARE THEIRS, NOT THE DEALER'S. ONLY SUCH MANUFACTURER OR
OTHER SUPPLIER SHALL BE LIABLE FOR PERFORMANCE UNDER SUCH WARRANTIES, UNLESS THE DEALER FURNISHES THE BUYER WITH A SEPARATE WRITTEN
WARRANTY OR SERVICE CONTRACT MADE BY THE DEALER ON ITS OWN BEHALF. THE DEALER NEITHER ASSUMES NOR AUTHORIZES ANY PERSON TO ASSUME
FOR IT ANY LIABILITY IN CONNECTION WITH THE SALE OF ANY PRODUCTS. 
UNLESS THE DEALER MAKES A WRITTEN WARRANTY ON ITS OWN BEHALF, OR ENTERS INTO A SERVICE CONTRACT WITHIN 90 DAYS FROM THE DATE OF
THIS ORDER, THE DEALER MAKES NO WARRANTIES ON THE VEHICLE EXCEPT AS REQUIRED BY LAW. THIS PROVISION DOES NOT AFFECT ANY WARRANTIES
COVERING THE VEHICLE THAT THE MANUFACTURER OR SUPPLIER MAY PROVIDE.

14. Changes in Tax Payable
Should any change in taxes levied by any level of government between the date of this Agreement and the actual delivery date of the Vehicle have the effect of
altering the purchase price of the Vehicle, then the Buyer and the Dealer agree that the purchase price w ill be adjusted to reflect the change in tax. Buyer agrees
to be responsible for any damages suffered by the Dealer if a financing contract cannot be arranged because of any default  or misrepresentat ion made by Buyer in
the credit  applicat ion.

15. Manufacturer Price Change
The Manufacturer may change the price of new vehicles w ithout not ice. If that happens w ith regard to new vehicles of the series and body type of the Vehicle
before Dealer delivers it  to Buyer, Dealer may change the cash delivered price of the Vehicle accordingly. If this occurs, Buyer may cancel this Agreement. If Buyer
cancels this agreement, dealer shall return any Trade-in to the Buyer, unless the Dealer has sold it . If the Dealer has sold the Trade-in, the Dealer shall pay Buyer
the sales price, less repair or improvements made to the vehicle.

16. Governing Law
This Agreement and each of the documents contemplated by or delivered under or in connect ion w ith this Agreement are governed by and are to be construed
and interpreted in accordance w ith the laws of the Province of Ontario and the laws of Canada applicable in the Province of Ontario.

17. Severability
In the event that one or more of the provisions contained in this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect under any applicable law, the
validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions hereof shall not be affected or impaired thereby.

18. English Language
It is the express w ish of the part ies that this form and any related documents be drawn up and executed in English. Les part ies on expressément exigé que le
présent formulaire et tous les documents s'y rattachant soient rédigés en anglais.

19. Error
If there is an error in the calculat ion of the purchase price or in any other matter documented in or connected w ith this Agreement, the Buyer and the Dealer
agree to amend the Agreement to correct the error. If the correct ion results in monies being owed to the Buyer or the Dealer, the Buyer and Dealer agree that
such monies w ill be paid promptly.

20. Assignment
The Buyer may not assign this Agreement w ithout the prior written consent of the Dealer. Buyer agrees to the assignment of this Agreement by Dealer to any
third party and to any subsequent transfer and/or assignment by Dealer w ithout not ice to or consent by Buyer. The Buyer further agrees that the assignee of this
Agreement is ent it led to all rights and privileges of this Agreement including as applicable the security interest in the vehicle.

21. Ontario law requires 2281610 ONTARIO INC o/a DOWNTOWN FORD/LINCOLN to collect and process used t ires to reduce Ontario`s t ire waste. We charge a
separate fee which w ill be used to pay a third party to perform such collect ion and processing.

01-FC-N March2017

2281610 ONTARIO INC O/A DOWNTOWN FORD/LINCOLN | Tel:416-603-9156 | Fax:416-603-0990 
| 77 East Don Roadway, Toronto, ON M4M 2A5

11/21/2024 1:36:45 PM Page 5 of 5



 

 

DATE: MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024                    11.1 
 

THE CORPORATION TOWN OF MATTAWA 
 
 
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council of the Town of Mattawa approve the hiring of Paul 

Laperriere as the full-time Chief Administrative Officer and Treasurer. 

 

AND FURTHER THAT Council adopt By-law No. 24-20 which is a by-law to appoint a full 

time Chief Administrative Officer and Treasurer. 



 
THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWN OF MATTAWA 

BY-LAW NUMBER 24-20 
 
BEING a By-law to appoint Paul Laperriere as Chief Administrative Officer and Treasurer for the 
Corporation of the Town of Mattawa. 
 
WHEREAS subsection 229 of the Municipal Act, 2001 provides that a Council of the Town of 
Mattawa may pass a by-law to appoint a Chief Administrative Officer who shall be responsible for: 

a) Exercising general control and management of the affairs of the municipality for the 
purpose of ensuring the efficient operation of the municipality; and 

b) Performing such other duties as are assigned by the municipality.  
 
AND WHEREAS subsection 286(1) of the Municipal Act, 2001 requires that Council of the Town 
of Mattawa shall appoint a Treasurer who is responsible for handling all of the financial affairs of 
the municipality on behalf of and in the manner directed by the council of the municipality, including: 
 

a) Collecting money payable to the municipality and issuing receipts for those payments; 
b) Depositing all money received on behalf of the municipality in a financial institution 

designated by the municipality; 
c) Paying all debts of the municipality and other expenditures authorized by the municipality; 
d) Maintaining accurate records and accounts of the financial affairs of the municipality; 
e) Providing the council with such information with respect to the financial affairs of the 

municipality as it requires or requests; 
f) Ensuring investments of the municipality are made in compliance with the regulations made 

under section 418. 
 
AND WHEREAS Council deems it necessary to appoint a Chief Administrative Officer and 
Treasurer for the municipality. 
 
NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Town of Mattawa enacts as follows:  
 

1. THAT Paul Laperriere be and hereby is appointed as Chief Administrative Officer and 
Treasurer. 

 
2. THAT Paul Laperriere shall exercise all the authority, powers and rights and shall perform 

all the duties and obligations as the Chief Administrative Officer and Treasurer which by 
statute or by by-law are or may be conferred or imposed upon and any other duties that may 
be imposed by Council. 

 
3. THAT Paul Laperriere shall hold these appointments until such time as Council deems 

necessary and is subject to the by-laws of the Corporation. 
 

4. THAT this By-law shall come into force on the date of passing thereof. 
 

5. THAT By-law Numbers 23-16, 23-19, 23-29, 23-30 and 20-27 are hereby repealed. 
 
READ A FIRST and SECOND TIME, this 25th day of November, 2024. 
 
READ THIRD TIME and FINALLY PASSED, this 25th day of November, 2024. 
 
 
___________________________    ___________________________ 
  Mayor                 Clerk 
 



Mattawa and Area Police Services Board 

C/O Ontario Provincial Police - Mattawa, 520 ON-17, P0H 1V0 

October 16, 2024 

Mayor Belanger and Members of Council, Town of Mattawa 

160 Water Street, Box 390,   

Mattawa, ON P0H 1V0 

Dear Mayor Belanger and Members of Council, 

Subject: Levy Payment for the 2024-2025 Fiscal Year 

I am writing on behalf of the Mattawa and Area Police Services Board (MAPSB) regarding the 
levy payments previously requested for the 2024-2025 fiscal year. Following extensive debate 
and deliberation, a resolution was passed during our September 2024 Board Meeting, amending 
each municipality’s contribution. The funding formula has been revised to a population-based 
approach, better aligning municipal levy payments with OPP service volumes. 

Please refer to the attached operating budget and workplan for further details regarding the 

updated contributions and financial breakdowns. As outlined in the workplan, the MAPSB has 

outstanding expenses that are past due, and we respectfully request that you process the levy 

payment promptly. 

As the Board Chairperson, I would like to take this opportunity to emphasize that this year 

represents a pivotal period for the MAPSB as we adjust to new mandates and requirements 

introduced under the Community Safety and Policing Act, 2019. We are actively collaborating 

with the Ontario Association of Police Services Boards to meet these new standards, and we will 

strive to keep you well informed of our progress. From time to time, we may also reach out to 

you for consultation and support as we work through these changes. 

Should you have any questions or concerns regarding the levy changes or any other issues, 

please do not hesitate to contact me directly.  My contact details are provided below. 

Thank you for your attention to this matter, and we look forward to your continued 

cooperation. 

Sincerely, 

Teresa Taillefer, BASc, MHS 

Chairperson, Mattawa and Area Police Services Board 

Teresa.Taillefer@gmail.com 

Mobile:  249-360-3999 

12.4

mailto:Teresa.Taillefer@gmail.com


Updated Mattawa and Area Police Services Board Operating Budget 2024-2025 

Updated September 2024 

 

Revenue 

Category Township 2021 Census 

Population 

Percentage of total based 

on population (as per the 

2021 Census Data)  

Amount ($) 

Township Levies Calvin  557 16.3 815.00 

 Papineau-Cameron 982 28.8 1440.00 

 Mattawa  1721 50.4 2520.00 

 Mattawan  153 4.5 225.00 

Total  3413 100 5000.00 

Expenses 

Category Expense Description Amount 

($) 

OAPSB Expenses Membership (1) 879.83 

Conference fees/expenses (2) 1,500.00 

Awareness and 
Appreciation Campaigns 

English high school scholarship (3) 150.00 

French high school scholarship (3) 150.00 

OPP Officer Appreciation (4) 500.00 

Honorariums Secretary-Treasurer honorarium (5) 600.00 

Non-council member honorarium (6) 500.00 

Government appointed member (7) n/a 

Education Expenses Mandatory education (non-council members) (8) 300.00 

Office Supplies Photocopying and supplies (9) 100.00 

Networking Networking event with other area OPP detachments boards (10) 220.17 

Insurance Board Liability Insurance (11) n/a 

Travel Travel (12) 100.00 



Updated Mattawa and Area Police Services Board Operating Budget 2024-2025 

Updated September 2024 

 

Summary 

Revenue $5000.00 

Expenses $5000.00 

Net Balance $0.00 

Footnotes 

 

1. Required Ontario Association of Police Services Board (OAPSB) membership. 

2. Estimate amount.  To be eligible for the early registration reduced rate this expense is included in this 

budget. Participation of at least one board member is recommended by the OPP. 

3. School scholarships provide an opportunity for a detachment officer to be visible in the schools.  

4. New activity encouraged by OAPSB. 

5. As approved at the May 2024 Board of Directors Meeting (4 regular meetings, handover meeting and 

archive review at $100.00 per meeting) 

6. As approved at the May 2024 Board of Directors Meeting (4 regular meetings and archive review) 

7. Placeholder for the required government appointed Board Director.  The position has not been 

assigned this fiscal year.  Most likely the position will be filled in fiscal year 2025 – 26. 

8. Estimated amount.  At the May 2024 Board of Directors Meeting, it was approved that non-council 

members will receive $75 to participate in mandatory education sessions. 

9. Cost of packages for each meeting and two data sticks 

10. New activity encouraged by OAPSB. 

11. Placeholder for the required Board liability Insurance. It is estimated that this will cost $300.00 annually.   

12. Estimate amount.  Previous year, Chairperson or representative requested to attend 2 OPP events. 

 

 

 

 



Mattawa and Area Police Services Board Work Plan for 2024-2025 

June 2024 

- Approve budget for 2024-2025 

- Approve work plan for 2024-2025 

- Approve terms of reference 

Meeting: 

As called by the Chair at 630 pm held at the Mattawa OPP Detachment Office Meeting 

Room  

September 2024 
- Review OPP Detachment Action Plan (Current) 

- Review each of the four Municipal Safety and Wellness Plans 

- Approve plan for networking event 

- Approve plan for the OPP appreciation event 

- Approve board policies drafted to date 

Meeting: 

September 25th, 2024 at 630 pm held at the Mattawa OPP Detachment Office Meeting 

Room  

November 2024 

- Host networking event  

December 2024 
- Host OPP appreciation event 

- Review budget and work plan for 2025-2026 fiscal year 

Meeting Date: 

December 4th, 2024 at 630 pm held at the Mattawa OPP Detachment Office Meeting 

Room  

March 2025 
- Approve report to Municipalities 

Meeting: 

As called by the Chair at 630 pm held at the Mattawa OPP Detachment Office Meeting 

Room  



Summary of Meeting Dates: 
June 2024: As called by the Chair 

September 25th, 2024: Regular meeting 

December 4th, 2024: Regular meeting 

March 2025: As called by the Chair 



 

 

DATE: MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024                    12.4 
 

THE CORPORATION TOWN OF MATTAWA 
 
 
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Council approve the 2024-2025 Mattawa and Area Police 

Services Board levy structure and authorize staff to send the levy payment in the amount of 

$2520.00 to the board. 



 

 

DATE: MONDAY NOVEMBER 25, 2024                   18.1 
 

THE CORPORATION TOWN OF MATTAWA 
 
 
MOVED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 
SECONDED BY COUNCILLOR         
 
 

 

BE IT RESOLVED THAT the November 25, 2024 meeting adjourn at   __ p.m. 

 
 


	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary


	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary



	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary



	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary



	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary


	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary



	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary



	b808f87c-73ef-42d7-b92f-2ba35ef57bb1.pdf
	008e68d4-878b-402d-9787-350cf3bc91d4.pdf
	Budget Book 2025.pdf
	1. Introduction
	2. Status of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	3. Status of the Mortgage Loan
	4. Revenue Sources
	4.1 General Information
	4.2 All Revenue Sources
	4.3 Municipal Levy Amounts

	5. Expenditures
	5.1 Overview of Expenditures
	5.2 Estimated Use of Reserves and Deferred Revenue
	5.3 Tangible Capital Assets Purchases

	6. 2025 Budget Summary





